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This Supplementary Report & Accounts contains an expanded financial review and remuneration report as well as proforma and full audited financial
staternents. This together with the accompanying Annual Review constitute the full annual financial statements of the group.
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FINANCIAL RESULTS

A year of tremendous achievement for United with underlying growth in our core
business-to-business operations up 9 per cent in revenues and 18 per cent in profits.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

2000 has seen an unparalleled
level of corporate activity for
United, in a year where we
have delivered an excellent
trading performance.

THIS HAS CLEARLY DEMONSTRATED THE VALUE OF OUR
STRONG FINANCIAL CONTROLS AND PRO-ACTIVE APPROACH TO
RISK MANAGEMENT, TOGETHER WITH OUR FOCUS ON CLEAR
AND TIMELY FLOWS OF HIGH QUALITY INFORMATION,

Andrew Crow
Group Financial Controller and
acting Finance Director

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

» LIKE FOR LIKE CORE REVENUES
UP 8.8 PER CENT

» LIKE FOR LIKE CORE OPERATING
PROHTS UP
18 PER CENT

» HEADLINE EARNINGS PER SHARE
(BEFORE ONLINE INVESTMENT) UP
6.9 PER CENT TO 49.5 PENCE

» DISPOSAL PROGRAMME
SUCCESSFULLY ACHIEVED,
REALISING PROCEEDS OF

£3.2 BILLION

» NET CASH OF £303 MILLION
EXCLUDING FUNDS Of

£1.25 BILLION TO BE RETURNED
TO SHAREHOLDERS

» CASH CONVERSION IN
CONTINUING BUSINESSES
(EXCLUDING ONLINE) OF

97 PER CENT

A YEAR OF FUNDAMENTAL CHANGE

At the end of 1999, we announced cur intention to focus the group’s portfolio
of businesses. We also sought to pursue a cansolidation in the UK commercial
broadcasting market. Looking back over 2000, these objectives have been
unequivocally achieved to the long-term benefit of sharehalders. The sale
prices achieved for our stock photography business, Visual Communications
Group, our US advertising periodicals business, UAP, Inc., and for the trade
magazines and exhibitions businesses sold in Europe and the US were at the
upper end of our expectations. In television, the findings of the Competition
Commission caused the proposed merger with Carlton to be abandoned, and
we instead achieved a sale of those businesses to Granada Media for £1.75
billion, a price which has realised excellent value for our shareholders. In
November 2000, we announced the sale of Express Newspapers to Northern
& Shell, realising proceeds of £125 million.

United enters 2001 as a focused market information media group, with a
major presence in professional media, news distribution and market research.
Each of these offers strong potential for long-term growth and enhanced
revenue opportunities from working closely together in meeting the
information needs of customers.

The group’s balance sheet shows the strength of our financial position:
at 31 December 2000, we have net cash of £303 million, excluding the

amount to be returned 1o shareholders, giving a strong base for investment in
future growth.
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SUMMARY PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

2000 1999
£m £m
Group wimaover
Continuing operations 1,052.1 858.3
Discontinued aperations 922.9 13130
Total 1,975.0 2,171.3
Headline operating profits before
online businesses*
Continuing operations 196.9 161.1
Discontinued operations 161.5 2004
Total 3584 il
Interest (before online businesses) {16.0) {54.1)
Headline profits before online businesses* 342.4 3074
Online businesses
Continuing (91.2) (2L.5
Discontinued (20.6) (3.8)
(111.8) (5.3
Interest {16.5) {7.6)
Ouline bustiesses (128.3) 32.9
Headline profits before tax* 4.1 1745
New ventures
Operatng losses 7.9) (14.7)
Interest (10.5) 7.7)
New ventures (18.4) (22.4)
Profits afeer new ventures 195.7 252.1
Headline EPS pre online businesses*™ 49.5p 46.3p
Headline EPS post online businesses** 30.3p 40.8p
EPS before amortisation of intangible assets and
exceptional items 274p 36.9p
Tax yate 25% 24%

* Balore new ventures, exceplional ifems, amortisation of intangible assets
and lexatien

** Before new ventures, exceptional items, omortisation of intangible assets
and related taxctian

CONTINUING UNDERLYING PROFIT PERFORMANCE:

CORE BUSIMESSES

The comparability of the group’s profit has been affected by a
number of factors, particutarly the disposals in 2000, the acquisition
of CMP Media, Inc. in 1999 and exchange rate differences. Adjusting

for these factors, the underlying growth in the core businesses
is 18 per cent.

2000 1999
£m Em

Continuing eperating profit before
onling irvestment 1969 1641
Less consumer media (8.2} (L1
Acquisitions - 9.7
Exchange - 79
Other, inctoding biennial shows 3.5 (10.6)
Continuing core underlying profic 185.2 157.0

OMLINE INVESTMENT

The investment in online activities during 2000 amcunted to
£111.8 million before funding costs. Looking forward, we will
continue to focus our investment in developing online extensions to
markets where we already have a leading position and which we
believe offer the most likely short term path to profitability. Qur

investment in core business enline markets in 2001 will not exceed
£45 million.
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DIVISIONAL PERFORMANCE

Continuing headtine operating profit before online by division

Consumer media 4%

Market vesearch 11%

News distribution 21%

Professional media 64%

Ceographic analysis of continuing headline operating
profit before online

UK 17%

Pacific 7%

Europe and Middle East 1%

North America 75%

DISPOSAL OF BUSINESSES

In November 1999, we announced that we would be divesting
certain businesses in line with our strategy of moving towards
a more focused group. These were successfully achieved during
2000:

» Visual Communications Group was sold to Getty images, Inc. for
3220 million,
» UAP, Inc. our US advertising periodicals business, was sold to
Trader Publishing Inc for $520 million.
» Our magazines and exhibitions pertfolio in Continental Europe
was soid o Reed Elsevier for £360 million.
> A part of our US magazines and exhibitions business was sold to
VNU for $650 million.
The sale of Express Newspapers to Northern & Shell for £125 million
was completed in November 2000.
The sale of the majority of United’s television interests to
Granada Media was completed in December 2000 for £1.75 billion,
In aggregate, these disposals achieved sale proceeds (before
costs) of £3.2 billion, representing an overall exit multiple on 1999
earnings of nearly 17 times.

RETURN OF CASH TO SHAREHOLDERS

The sale of the group’s television interests to Granada Media realised
proceeds of £1.75 billion. Under the Sale Agreement, United was
entitled to receive £1.25 billion of these proceeds as either Granada
Media shares or as cash, and we committed that this part of the
proceeds would be returned to sharehokders. In view of the
downturn in the Granada Media share price during the second haif
of 2000, United elected to take the proceeds in cash.

We have announced that the return to shareholders will take the
form of a subdivision and consolidation of the existing United shares.
The subdivision will create a class of ‘B’ shares with a total value of
approximately £1.25 billion. UK shareholders will have the option to
sell these shares for 245 pence per share, to receive a singte dividend
of 245 pence per share, or to receive a continuing dividend linked to
LIBOR. The consolidation of the remaining ordinary shares will reduce
the actual number of shares in issue, maintain consistency with
previous market pricing and, combined with the ‘B’ share scheme,
replicate a buy-back of shares to the value of £1.25 billion. In the
opinion of the beard, this approach enables the cash value of £1.25
billion to be passed through to shareholders in a quick and effective
manner and treats all sharehelders on an equal basis.

The proposed scheme, which is subject to shareholder approval,
is expected to be completed during April 2001.




GROUP PROCESS REVIEW

During 2000, we have continued with the implementation of the
Group Process Review, which commenced in 1999 and is focused on
reducing costs across the group in order to improve margins and to
provide additional funds for investment in core businesses.

The total costs incurred in 2000 for the implementation were
£16.9 million, bringing the total expenditure in 1999 and 2000 to
£31.5 million. Further exceptional costs are expected to arise during
2001 as the remainder of the projects are completed.

Of the total expenditure to date on the Group Process Review,
£13 8 million refated to businesses which have been divested during
2000. We believe that the actual and prospective cost savings

identified within the businesses were reflected in the sale prices
achieved for those businesses,

EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

The group’s earnings for 2000 include the impact of £2.1 billion of

exceptional items.

» The sales of businesses during the year referred to above have
generated aggregate profits on disposal of £2,146.7 million.

» The group incurred costs of £19.6 million relating to the
proposed merger with Carlton Communications Plc, which was
abandoned by mutual agreement with Carlton in July 2000
following the announcement of the findings of the Competition
Commission,

» The sales of businesses and the subsequent focus of United as a
market information media group have resulted in a considerable
level of reorganisation and restructuring of the group’s operations.
The total cost of restructuring in 2000 amounted to £22.3 million.

» The Group Process Review, which is described separately above,
incurred costs of £16.9 million during the year.

Overall, the group’s exceptional items have increased profit before

tax by £2,084.1 million, and have increased basic earmnings per share
by 375.5 pence.

DIVIDEND

The proposed final dividend is 11.2 pence, giving a total dividend for
the year of 22.2 pence (1999: 22.2 pence). As previously reported,
we intend to hold the dividend at this level until a cover of 2.5 times
has been reached. The headline profit for 2000, before taking
account of losses and funding costs attributable to online activities,
equates 1o a dividend cover of 2.2 times.

Following the propased return of cash to shareholders and share
consolidation, it is our intention to continue to apply this approach
of seeking a target dividend cover of 2.5 times to the revised share
capital. However, in recognition of the expectation that the group
will have a continuing level of investment in developing online
businesses across its markets, the dividend cover will in future be
measured using the profit after online activities.

CASH FLOWS

The group continues to focus on cash management. Net operating
cash inflow for the year, excluding discontinued and online
businesses, was £188.5 million, giving cash conversion of 97 per
cent. The continuing businesses spent £29.8 million on capital
expenditure, £8.4 million more than depreciation. The excess of
capital expenditure over depreciation reflects the levels of IT
investment in the business, particularly within news distribution.
Net cash at 31 December 2000 was £1,553.0 million, compared
t0 net debt at 31 December 1999 of £1,304.7 million. The inflow of

FI NAN CIAL REVI EW (continued)
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£2,857.7 million mainly comprises £3,167.1 miilion of disposal
proceeds, net of £145.7 million of investment and £193.9 million of
tax and dividend payments.

TREASURY & FINANCING

United's central treasury is responsible for managing the group’s
financing and for the overall monitoring and control of financial risks
(including liquidity, interest rate and foreign currency risks) arising
from the group’s activities. Treasury policies are agreed by the
board, which has also issued guidelines on the use of financial
instruments, The group does not undertake speculative transactions,

Foreign currency transaction exposures are covered as they arise,
generally using forward foreign exchange contracts. United does not
hedge profit translation exposures, as these are accounting rather
than cash exposures. However, foreign currency borrowings are
used where approptiate to provide an economic hedge against
investrment in overseas territories.

The group borrows centrally on behalf of its subsidiaries with the
aim of maximising flexibility and price competitiveness, A variety of
different funding sources have been used, including syndicated bank
facilities, private placements and the public debt markets. Despite
the changes in the group’s portfolio during 2000, United has
maintained its investment grade long-term ratings of Baa2 by
Moody’s Investor Services Inc. and BBB by Standard & Poor’s.

Interest rate exposure is managed by using fixed rate borrowings
and finandial instruments such as interest swaps. These instruments
allow United to select its preferred level of fixed rate net debt. To
maximise flexibility the guidelines issued by the board do not stipulate
that a minimum proportion of net debt must be at a fixed interest rate.
Cash is invested with the emphasis on preservation of capital, with
limits for individual counterparties based on credit rati ngs and liquidity.

At the year end, the group had net cash balances of £1,553
million. Of this, £1,250 million is invested specifically to fund the
return of capital to shareholders referred to above. The group has
long-term barrowings of £590.5 million, principally the US bonds of
$500 million issued in 1999. 94 per cent of the group’s borrowings
are at fixed rates after taking account of interest rate swaps. Full
information on the group’s cash and borrowings is given in note 23,
Average interest rates on fixed rate borrowings were 7 per cent, and
the average maturity of all debt was 4.7 years. Interest cover for the
year was 8 times,

Unutilised facilities at the year end were £1,160 million,
provided by a group of well known international barks.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL STATEMENT

In view of the complexity of the analysis and disclosure of financial
information required by Accounting Standards, the group prepares a
summary financial statement. This is included in the review of
operations to provide an overview of the group’s performance. The
annual review, which contains the summary financial statement, is
sent to those shareholders who de not request the full annual report.
Copies of this supplementary report and accounts are available to
any shareholder if required, and can be obtained from the comparny
secretary’s office.

GOING CONCERN
Having reviewed the group’s liquid resources, borrowing facilities
and cash flow forecast, the directors believe that the group has

adequate resources to continue as a going concern for the
foreseeable future,




Proforma five year financial summary*

Restoted
2000 1999 1998 1997 1994
£m &m £m Lm S
Profit and loss account
Turnover 1,975.0 2,171.3 1.911.5 1,931.7 1,653.2
Heodline profit before online businesses 342.4 307.4 290.2 28713 2490
Amortisation of intangible assets {184.6) 244 4) {167.0) (163.8 {115.6)
Profit/lloss} before fax 2,093.2 142.3) 345.5 108.9 144.4
Eurnings/({loss) per share
Hecdline pre online businesses 49.5p 46.3p 41.6p 41.p 35.3p
Pra amortisation of intangible assets and excaptional items 27.4p 36.9p 37.2p 30.5p 29.8p
Basic 365.7p [21.2lp 56.3p 7.4p 17 .4p
Ordinary dividends 22.2p 22.2p 22.9p 24.0p 23.5p
* Proforma figures excluding Garban
Financial calendar
Ex dividend date 7 March 2001

Record dale
Annual General Meeling:
Final dividend to be paid:

Intarim results announced:

Interim dividend expected to be paid:
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Remuneration report

ROLE OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee consists exclusively of independent non-executive directors. It was chaired by Sir James McKinnon and, following
his retirement in December 2000, is now chaired by John Botts. The other members of the committee are Sir Ronald Hampel, Christopher
Powell, Adair Turner, Geoffrey Unwin and Fields Wicker-Miurin. The commirtee meets formally on average three vimes a year,

On matters other than those concerning his own remuneration, the chief executive attends the commitiee meeting by invitation,

The committee’s role is to determine all aspects of the remuneration package and terms of employment for each of the executive directors

of the company and, where requested, for other senior executives of the group, and to set the policy and make awards under the group’s share
option and other long-term incentive plans.

POLICY ON REMUNERATION OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The fees of the chairman and non-execuative directors are considered and approved by the board as a whole, having regard 1o current market practice.

During the year the board reviewed its policy on remuneration of non-executive directors and decided thar, in order to link the interests of
non-executive directors moge closely with those of shareholders, part of their fees should be paid in the form of shares. Accordingly, with effect
from 1 October 2000, John Bous, Christopher Powell, Adair Turner, Geoffrey Unwin and Fields Wicker-Miutin each receive a fee of £35,000
per annum of which it is proposed that £10,000 per annum will be paid in the form of shares in the company. This fee includes membership of
board committees; an additonal £5,000 per annum is paid to each of John Botts and Geoffrey Unwin for thewr chairmanship of the remuneradon
and audit committees respectively. Sir Ronatd Hampel receives a fee of £200,000 per annum for his role as chairman, of which £100,000 per
annum is proposed to be paid in the form of shares in the company. Sir James McKinnon received a fee at the rate of £60,000 per annum in
respect of his role as deputy chairman during 2000.

The proposal to pay the non-executive directors in the form of shares requires an amendment to the company’s articles of association; this
has been included in new articles of association for which shareholder approval will be sought in April 2001. It is proposed to award shares in
arrears twice a year, the first such award o be made in April 2001 in respect of the six months from 1 October 2000. The number of shares to be
awarded will be calenlated by reference 1o the mid-market price on 31 March 2001 and the shares will not be released 1o the divectors undl they
retire from the board. In the event that shareholders were not to approve the new articles of association, the directors would receive the full
amount of their fees in cash.

Sir Ronald Hampel’s appointment may be terminated by either party on at least 12 months” notice, not to be given before 1 July 2001,

The other non-executive directors do not have service contracts with the company; each has a notice period of 6 months. Each non-executive
director’s appointment (including the chzirman) is reviewed on a three yearly cycle. Non-executive directors are not entitled to participate in the
company’s share option or pension schemes; however Roger Langhton, who retired as 2 non-executive director on 31 December 2000, held 2
number of options granted while he was an executve director of the company.

POLICY ON REMUNERATIQON OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Total level of remuneration

The committee aims to ensure that remuneration packages offered to executive directors are aligned with business interests and reflect the
company’s cammitment to long-term profitable growth.,

Trends in remuneration during 2000 have been strongly influenced by fierce competition for technical, professional and management talent
in the group's core businesses, particularly in the US. The company has had to keep up not only with the remuneration practices of other large
comparies but also with stert-up companies which have offered very attractive share participation to join them. Whilst this pressure from new
media ventures has now abated, the company still has to measure up to the remuneration policy and practices in the US, where more than half its
business is based, and where remuneration policy is constantly put under the spotlight in response to the intense pressure caused by limited

resources on attracting and retaining key people. In response to this the company is seeking to develop total remuneration packages that reward
outperformance of demanding targets.

In summary, the company seeks to offer packages which:
» attract, retain and motivate executives of the highest quality and with the requisite skills and experience

» provide incentive arrangements which are subject to chaflenging performance targets and which reflect the group’s objectives
» ensure directors identify with shareholders’ interests

» reflect the underlying performance of the businesses,

The main components of executive directors’ remuneration are:
» basic salary
> henefits (or a cash allowance instead of the provision of corporate benefits)
% annual performance related bonus
% pension
» longer term incentives.

Long term incentive arrangements were reviewed during 2000 to more closely align them with the goals described above and with the
marketplace. Denails of these are provided on pages 8 and 9.

Tt is recognised that by holding the office of a non-executive director of another company, an executive director can gain valuable knowledge
and experience that can benefit the company. The policy therefore provides for executive directors to accept not more than one outside appointment
where no conflict of interest exists with the group’s business. An executive director may retain the fees received for a non-executive directorship.
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Remuneration report

POLICY ON REMUMNERATION OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS [conlinued)

Directors’ service confracts

Executive directors have service contracts that are terminable on one year’s notice by either party except for Clive Hollick and Charles Gregson
whose contracts are terminable on two years’ notice by either party. These notice periods have been in place since the directors joined the
company and the committee does not believe it to be appropriate or cost-effective 10 buy out these notice periods.

In the event that either Clive Hollick’s or Charles Gregson’s service were to be terminated by the company without their consent, they would
be endtled to an immediate pension based on their Final Pensionable Salary at the date of termination and the proportion of their pension
entitlement at age 60. The proportion would be caleulated as the ratio of actal service completed to the date of termination to total service
up to age 60.

The committes has agreed that Clive Hollick and Charles Gregson will have the flexibility to request the trustees of the pension plan to pay a
transfer value from the plan, rather than requiring the director to draw an immediate pension.

Except for the aforementioned provision, the directors’ service contracts do not provide for predetermined amounts of compensation. The
duty to mitigate any loss would normally be taken into account if directors’ contracts were terminated on less than the contractual notice period.

Basic salaries
Basic salary for each director is determined annually with effect from 1 January.

The company regalarly participates in executive remuneration surveys that provide information on the practice of FT-SE 100 and other
major public companies to measure the competitiveness of the directors’ base salaries. In addition to measurement against competitive market
data, factors such as inflation, the individual's performance, the company’s performance and the salary policy throughout the group as a whole
are taken int¢ account when determining basic salary levels. Basic salaries are reviewed in the context of the overall remuneration package.

Benefits
The company offers directors a cash benefits allowance (which is non-pensionable} from which they can purchase benefits, which might typically

include a car, private medical insurance, long-term disability insurance and additional life assurance, This practice has the advantage of offering
the directors maximum flexibility in choice of benefits whilst controlling the cost of providing these benefits.

Bonus

Directors can earn an annual bonus of up to a maximum of 50 per eent of basic salary. The receipt of annual bonuses is dependent on the
achievement of targets which are agreed at the beginning of the year to encourage performance in a manner which the committee considers will
contribute most to increasing shareholder value for that year. Targets might typically include growth in profits, earnings per share, cash
conversion levels as well as individual objectives.

During the year bonuses were paid to 160 people in connection with the proposed merger with Carlton Communications and the subsequent

sale of the group’s television businesses to Granada Media plc. As part of this programme special bonuses were awarded to Clive Hollick,
Charles Gregson and Charles Stern.

Pension entitlement

The table on page § shows the amount of the pension entitlement accrued during the year for Clive Hollick and Charles Gregson who both
participated in a defined benefir scheme. Former director Nigel Donaldson was in receipt of both a deferred pension within a defined benefit
scheme and benefits under 2 defined contribution arrangement. Details are provided on page 8.

Other directors ase entitled to benefits under defined contribution arrangements. Details of the contributions paid during the year by the
company under these arrangements can also be found on page 8.

Clive Hollick and Charles Gregson are members of the executive der of the United Pension Plan (formerly called the MAI Pension Scheme)
which is an approved defined henefit scheme. The company meets the full cost of the benefits. Normal retirement 2ge is 60 and the pension
entitlement is 2/3rds of Fina! Pensionable Salary, which is the annual average of the best three consecutive Pensionable Salaries in the last ten
years. Under the terms of their service contracts, Pensionable Salary is defined as total raxable earnings, including bonus, less car allowance and
any benefits in kind.

Members of the United Pension Plan receive increases on their pensions in payment of 5 per cent pa or RPL if less, for all pensionable
service. The widow's pension for the two executive directors is 2/3rds of their pension.
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Remuneration report

POLICY ON REMUNERATION OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS {continued}

Additionel pension earned

in excess of inflation Accrved entitement Accrued et smant

during the year ended at yeer end of year and

31 December 2000 31 December 2000 31 December 1999

Name Current age £000 pa £000 pa £000 pa
Clive Hollick 55 24 507 478
Charles Gregson 53 15 309 7291

Directors’ defined contribution pension provision is set out in the table below:

Company pension

contributions

for the year

Name refirement age Pension toniribution £000
Charles Sterm o0 41% of basic salary up 1o £170,000. 15% on the excess. 8G
Tony Tillin &0 20% of full year's basic salary 57
Nigel Denaldson 65 19% of {prerata) basic salary + 401K glan 32

NOTES:  Nigel Donaldson:

Nigel Donaldson left the group on 20 June 2000 following the sale of UAP, Inc. Mr Donaldson elected to pay his sale bonus of
£286,130 into his SERPS. As the retirement age for main beard directors is normally 60, he was alse awarded £264,568 to partially
compensate him for a shortfall in his retirement fund.

Nigel Donazldson has a deferred pension under the United Magazines Final Salary Pension Scheme of £41,111 pa. The deferred
pension increases in line with the Rerail Prices Index up 1o 5 per cent per annum from the date he left the scheme (31 December 1993}
untl Mr Donaldson’s retiremnent age. Mr Donaldson does not contribute to the scheme. Mr Donaldson is presently aged 57. Normal
retirement age under the scheme is 65. The widow’s pension on death in retirement is 0 per cent of the director’s pension. The
pension increases once it is in payment at the lesser of 5 per cent per annum or the increase in the Retail Price Index. Any wansfer
value would be based on the gnaranteed benefits outlined above. Early Retrement from age 60 may be given under the scheme
without an early retirement reduction applying to the pension if the group agrees to the director’s retirement.

Shure opfions and long-term incentive arrongements
Executive Share Optlions

Dutring the year the company undertook an extensive review of its long-term incentive arrangements in the light of changes in the marketplace,
as well as the new guidelines issued by the ABL in July 1999. Following this review the company, with the approval of its shareholders,
established the United Business Media 2000 Executive Scheme, under which aptions are granted to senior executives and employees of the
group. There are three parts to the scheme, the first of which is appraved by the Inland Revenee and is used to grant eptions to UK resident
executives up to 2 maximum limit of £30,000. The other two parts of the scheme are not designed for Inland Revenue approval; the first of these,
Part B, is used to grant options to non UK resident executives and UK resident executives who already hold more than £30,000 worth of
cutstanding approved optons. Options urder Part B may be designated as basic oprons (t.e. those granted at market value) or premium priced
optons, which may be granted at a premium of 25 per cent, 50 per cent or 75 per cent to the market value of the shares. The third part of the
scheme js intended to allow the grant of approved options in the US known as incentive stock options.

There is no specified limit for the grant of options to individuals under this scheme but the committee will determine the appropriate level
of each grant, having regard to corporate objectives, market forces and individual circumstances. Tt is anticipated that awards will be made on a
phased basis. The inidal awards made in December 2000 included the granr of options to 21 senior executives of the group (including executive
directors) at a multiple of approximately four times salary. This was considered to be appropriate given the wish to incentivise these individuals
following the major re-focusing of the group’s activities, particularly in light of the group’s increased exposure to US markets and the need o
compete for talent in the US. Half of the optons granted will vest after three years and the other half after four years, subject to achievement of
the performance condition referred to below.

Options granted under the 2000 Executive Scheme will lapse (if not previously exercised) on the tenth anniversary of their grant date, The
exercise of the basic options is subject to a performance condition which requires growth in earnings per share to exceed inflation by an average
of 3 per cent per annum for options np to a value of (.75 times salary. In order for the whole award to vest, growth in ezmings per share must
exceed inflation by an average of 5 per cent per annum. A sliding scale applies between these rwo figures. These performance conditions are
measured over a period of three to six years from the date of grant, Premium priced options require real earnings per share growth of 3 per cent

per annum over a rolling three year period; participants must also comply with the company's minimum sharehelding guidelines in order wo
exercise these options.
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Remuneration report

POLICY ON REMUNERATION OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS |confinued)
Senior Executive Equity Paricipation Plan

Under the United Business Mediz 2000 Senior Executive Equity Partcipation Plan (“SEEPP”), selected senior executives may opt to waive part
of their remuneration and to receive interests in shares in the company to the equivalent value. The trustee of the SEEPP purchases shares in the
company in the market to the value of the remuneraton foregone by the executive {(“bonas shares”) which can be exercised at any vime ata
nominal price. Alternatively the executive could elect to purchase the bonus shares directly and deposit them with the trustee of the SEEPP.

The executive may also be granted a right to acquire shares (“matching shares”) in the company equal in value to the gross amount of the
remuneration foregone or for the gross amount required to purchase bonus shares, at a nominal price. A matching share award wili normally

be exercisable in full between the fourth and tenth anniversaries of its grant, but only to the extent that the attached bonus shares remain
unexercised. Ong third of a mawhing share award is not contingent on a performance condition while the remaining two thirds do require

a performance condition to be met. The terms of the SEEPP are varied for US residents to rake account of local tax legislation.

Other long-term incentive arrangements

The 2000 Executive Scheme and SEEPP described above replace the following schemes previously operated by the company:-
» The 1994 UK and International Executive Share Option Schemes

These operated in the same way as the 2000 Executive Scheme but with less demanding performance criteria. The maximuin level of grants
that could be made under these schemes was four times annual salary.
» The 1996 SEEPP

This operated in the same way as the SEEPP which has replaced it, excepe that the matching awards were subject to a longer vesting period

{up to seven years} but no performance conditions.
» Long Term Incentive Plan

This is a performance related plan restricted to executive directors and a small number of senior executives. Awards were made in the form
of a provisional entitlement 10 receive shares in the company up to a maximum value of 100 per cent of the participants salary (excluding
benefits in kind) in any financial year. The allocated shares would be received, subject to satisfaction of the performance condition, no earlier
than the third anniversary of the allocation date. The performance condition requires the group’s total shareholder return (i.e. share price
movement and dividends paid) when compared with that of the other FTSE 100 companies over the three year period, to place the group in at
least 50th position within the FTSE 100. If the group’s position is 25th or above the shares will vest in full, while 20 per cent of the shares will
vest at 50th position. For posidons between 25 and 50 these shares will be allocated proportionately on a sliding scale.

Awards are still outstanding under the above arrangements and, in so far as they relate to executive directors, are described in the tables on
pages 11 to 12,

No further awards will be made under any of these arrangements,

The company also operated two individual incentive plans for Nigel Denaldson and Tony Tillin, executive directors who left during the year,
No awards vested under Nigel Donaldson’s plan; Tony Tillin received 15,789 shares following his cessation. of employment on 30 June 2000,

Sharesave

The company also operates both UK and Internatienal sharesave plans which enable eligible employees around the group to acquire options
over ordinary shares of the company at a discount of up to 20 per cent of their market price, using the proceeds of a related SAYE contract. All
employees who have worked for the minimum qualifying period in the relevant countries are eligible to join the scheme. Some options were
originally granted under the MAT sharesave scheme on similar terms to the above and have now been rolled over into options over the company's

shares. The International plan is currently extended to eligible employees in the USA, Germany, Hong Kong and Singapore. Options under the
International plan are granted in local currency.

All Employee Share Ownership Plan

Following the inoroduction of this plan in the 2000 Finance Act the company has established an All Employee Share Ownership Plan (*fAESOP”).
No awards have yet been granted under this plan.
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Remuneration report

TABLE OF INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS” REMUMNERATION

Termination Yotal in Towal in
Basic salory Fees Benefits payments Borus 2000 1099
Directors Position £ £ £ £ £ £ £
Clive Hollick Chief Executive 648,900 17,850 273,350 1,640,100 944,830
Charles Gregson Ditector 187,500 5,817 129988 3243058 171,283
Charles Slern Director 300,000 18,125 201,002 519217 403,307
Sir Ronald Hompel Men-Executive Chairman 162,500 162,500 75,000
Joha Botis MNon-Execulive Diraclor 32,500 32,500 28,750
Christopher Powell Non-Execulive Director 290375 29,375 26,250
Adair Turner Non-Execulive Director 29375 29,375
Geoftrey Unwin NonrExecutive Director 32,500 32,500 28,750
Fields Wicker-Miurin Non-Executive Director 29,375

29,375 26,250

Directors who retired during the year

Migel Conaldson Director 1S 146,311 6,319 286130 438,760 355,115
Tony Tillin Director 142,500 9,327 166,575 11,967 330,369 400,757
Sie lor‘nes McKinnan  Nor-Executive Deputy Chaisman 40,000 15,000 75,000 57,500

Roger Lavghton MNon-Executive Director 27,500 6,875 34,375 78,387

Total emoluments 1,425211 403,125 58,438 474,580 1,316,397 3,677,751 2,596,109

NOTE 1 Benefits are either non—pensionable car and benefit cash allowances or benefits in kind provided by the company.

NOTE 2:  Sir James McKinnon retired as non—executive deputy chairman effective 31 December 2000 and received 1 termination payment
ag shown above.

NOTE 3: Roger Laughton retired as a non-executive director effective 31 December 2000 and received a termination payment as shown above.

NOTE 4: Part or ali of the bonus can be sacrificed to the United SEEPP.

NOTE §: Clive Hollick was the highest paid director,

NOTE 6: 'The US director’s remuneration has been converted to sterling using the average year to date exchange rate of $1.5519 to £1.

NOTE 7:  Sir Ronald Hampel was appointed on 1 July 1999 and his 1999 figure is based on his remuneration from 1 July to 31 December 1999.

NOTE 8: Nigel Donaldson was paid a special termination bonus of £286,130 on the sale of UAP, Inc, which he chose to pay into his
pension scheme, He resigned as a direcror on 18 April 2000 and the figores shown are for the period 1o 20 June 2000, when UAP, Inc
was sold,

NOTE 9: Charles Gregson's ime is split between his executive chairmanship of Garban Intercapital and his work for United, From 1 July 2000
the split was altered from 2 to 3 days per week with United, and his remuneration shown in the table above reflects the properdon
relating to his services for the company.

NOTE 10: Adair Turner was appointed as a non—executive director on 1 January 2000 and his remuneration has been included from that date.

NOTE 11: Tony Tillin resigned as a director on 18 April 2000 and the figures shown are for the period 1o 30 June 2000, when his employment
with the group ceased.

NOTE 12:

Non-executive directors’ fees inchude an element which is proposed 1o be paid in the form of United shares, s shown on page 6.
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Remuneration report

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

Directors’ interests in United ordinary shares of 25p [*United Shares”}

The interests of the directors in United shares (all of which are beneficial) are shown 2s follows: at 1 January 2000 and at 31 December 2000,

Ordinary shares at Ordinary Shares at SEEPP Bonus Shares ot SEEPP Bonus Shores ot
Directar 1.1.2000 31.12,.2000 1.1.2000 31.12.2000
Sir Ronald Hampel 1,750 9,250 - -
Clive Hollick 524123 557 A77 362,324 362,324
Charles Gregson 314,885 356,986 24,757 24,757
Charles Stern 2,734 2,734 29,566 31,725
lohn Botls 3,000 3,000 - -
Christopher Powell 4,032 4,032 - -
Adair Turner - - - -
Geoffrey Unwin 5,072 5972 - -
Fields Wicker-Miurin - 350 -

Ar 31 December 2000, the trustees of the United News & Media Employee Share Ownership Trust, and the Qualifying Employee Share Trust
(QUEST) held a total of 3,568,004 United shares (1999: 3,212,302), and options over 2,063,423 United shares (1999: 1,503,980). Under
paragraph 2 of Schedule 13 of the Companies Act, the executive directors are deemed to be interested in these shares and options.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN OPTIONS OVER UNITED SHARES

The interests of the directors in options over United shares are shown at | January 2000 and at 31 December 2000,

QOpliens Exercised/ Qplions Exercise Exercise Market price
Date held at lapsed held ot period period Exercise ot date Tolal gain
of Grant 1.1.00  during 2000 31.12.00 from to price [pl  of exercise  on exercise
Clive Hollick

MAI Executive Schemes 28.10.91 $6,000 - 96,000 281094 28,100 192.188
30.10.92 51,200 - 51,200 30,1095 301002 234375
28.10.93 28,800 - 28,800 28.1096 28.1003  363.281
13.10.94 44,800 - 44,800  13.1097 13,1004 374.219
20.10.95 64,000 - 64,000 201098 201002 467625
MAl Shargsave Scheme 201095 1,950 - 1,850 01.12.02 01.06.03  400.000

United Executive Schemes 160996 153 455 153,455 160999 160906 686,000

18.12.00 - - 152,500 18.12.03  18.12.10  843.000
18.12.00 - - 152,500 181204 181210 843.000
United SAYE Scheme 01.11.9¢ 1,464 - 1,464 01.02.04 01.08.04 532600
31.10.97 616 - 616 010205 010805 632700

Charles Gregson

MAI Executive Schemes 28109} 36,000 96,000 - 281004 28.10.0) 192,188 3430 £024780
30.10.92 51,200 - 51,200 301095 30.10.02 234375
28.10.93 28,800 - 28,800 28,1096 28.1003 363281
13.10.94 44,800 - 44,800 131097 131004 374219
20.10.95 64,000 - 64,000 201098 20.10.02  467.625
United Execulive Schemes 16,09 .06 69,252 - 69,252 160999 16.09.06  6856.000
18.12.00 - - 52,500 18.12.03 18.12.10  843.000
18.12.00 - - 52,500 18.12.04 18.12.10  843.000
United SAYE Scheme C1.11.96 2,591 - 2,591 01.02.02 01.08.02 532.600
15.12.98 655 - 655 010204 01.0804  514.800

Charles Stern
United Exscutive Schemes  13.04.93 111,544 111,544 13.04646 130403 53010

27.0494 12,616 12,616 270497 270404 630.80
04.04.95 5,182 - 5182 040498 040405 505.50
19.04.96 16,165 16,165 12.04.99 190406 658.50

160996 6,346 6,346 160960 160906 686.00
United SAYE Scheme 10.11.95 4,097 - 4,097  01.0207 G1080] 421.00




Remuneration report

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN LONG-TERM INCENTIVE SCHEMES
Senior Executive Equity Participation Plan {“SEEPP”)

Bonus shares Malching Bonus shares Matching Bonus shares Maiching Price
/optians options /options opfions Joptions options paid for
ot at  acqguired in  granted in at ot Bonus shares/  Exercisable Expiry Market
01.01.00 01.01.00 2000 2000 31.12.00 31.12.00 amount* oplion [p} from Cate Value$
Clive Hollick 36,728 36,728 - - 36,728 36,728 £260,400 709.00 160900 29.06.07 £312,188
20007 20017 - - 20,117 20,117  £155,006 77050 17.03.01 29.06.07 £170.995
34,038% 34,038 - - 34,038 34,038 £263,796 77500 18.03.02 29.06.07 §£289,323
3375671 113,273t - - 337,567 113,273 n/a nfa 30.09.00 29.06.07 £062,82)
24,757 24,7571 - - 24,757 24,757 n/a nfa 03.12.99 29.06.10 £210.435

- - 33,354* 33,354 33,354 33,354 £309,000 926.44  03.03.04 290610 £283,509
Charles Gregson 13,41 7* 13,417 -

- 13,417 13,417 £95120 70900 160900 260607 £114,045

4994 4994 - - 4,994 4994 £38,483 77050 17.03.01 290607  $£42,449
15,152* 15,152 - -~ 15152 15152 $£117,430 77500 18.03.02 290607 £128,792
9,398  9,398* - - 9,398 9,398 £61,513  654.56 (08.03.03 29.06.07 £79,883
24757% 04,7574 - ~ 24,757 24,757 n/a n/a 031299 29.06.10 £210,435
- - 2.335* 2,335 2,335 2,335 £21,630 92644 03.03.04 2906010 £19,848
Charles Stem 9,733 9733 -

- 9733 9733  £75,000 77050  17.03.01 29.06.10 £82,731
12,194 12,194 - - 12,194 12194 194,305 77500 1803.02 2900610 1103440
7,639 7,639 - - 7,639 7,639 £50,000 654.56 08.03.03 29.06.10 £64,932

- - 2,159 2,159 2,159 2,159 £20,000 92644  03.03.04 200610 £18352

No options were exercised during 2000. These options were granted over the same numbers of United shares and at the same exercise price
as options previously held under the SEEPP and given up by each of the above directors.

* The bonus was paid to the director’s Funded Unapproved Retirement Benefit Scheme (“FURBS™). The FURBS Trustees purchased
shares from the SEEPP Trustees to the value of the bonus and 1 matching option was granted over the same number of shares,

The bonus shares are included in the director’s beneficial interest in shares, shown on page 11.

Market value of matching options at 850.0p per share, the closing mid-market price on 31 December 2000.

These options were granted to Clive Hollick in exchange for options held under the Meridian Scheme.

1 The options were granted in exchange for options held under the 1989 MAI Purchase Only Scheme, the rights to which were waived.
Both the benus and matching opdons are exercisable in full.

—+

Long Term Incentive Plan (“LTIP")

Shares allocated  Shares cllocoted  Value of award  Shares allocated Earliest date Market

at 01.01,00 during 2000 ot date of grant ot 31.12.00 for transfer volue*

Clive Hollick 50,285 - £388,000 50,285 21.05.00 427,423
77,710 - £600,000 77,710 18.03.01 £660,535

105,027 - £610,000 105,027 23.03.02 £892,730

- 75,435 £648,900 75,435 03.03.03 £641,108

Charles Gregson 39,528 - £305,000 39,528 2105300 £335,988
45,330 - £349,993 45,330 18.03.01 £385,305

62,067 - £360,485 62,067 23.03.02 £527,570

- 43,594 £375,000 43,594 03.03.03 £370,549

Charles Stern 27,216 - £210,000 27,216 21.05.00 £231,336
32,379 - £250,000 32,370 18.03.01 £275,222

44,335 - £257,500 44,335 23.03.02 £376,848

- 34,875 £300,000 34,875 03.03.03 £296,438

*Market value of LTIP shares at 850.0p per share, the closing mid-market price on 31 December 2000.

Changes in directors’ interests since 31 December 2000

The LTIP awards made to executive directors in [997 lapsed in January 2001. The 1998 LTIP awards have vested in part and will be transferred to
participants following the third anniversary of the date of grant; the unvested portion of the 1998 LTIP awards has also lapsed. There have been no
other changes to the interests of directors in United shares nor in options over United shares between the year end and 27 February 2001,
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Independent auditors’ report to the members
of United Business Media pic

We have audited the financial statements which comprise the group profit and loss account, the balance sheets of the group and company, the

group cash flow statement, the statement of group total recognised gains and losses and the reconciliation of movements in group shareholders’
funds and the related notes.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable United Kingdom law
and accounting standards are set out in the statement of directors’ responsibilities.

Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements, United Kingdom
auditing standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board and the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority.

‘We report to you our opinion as 1o whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and sre properly prepared in 2ccordance with
the Companies Act 1985, We also report to you if, in our opinion, the directors’ report is not consistent with the financial statements, if the
company has not kept proper accounting records, if we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit,
or if information specified by law or the Listing Rules regarding directors’ remuneration and transactions is not diselosed.

‘We read the other information contained in the annual report and consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any
apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the financial statements.

We review whether the corporate governance statement reflects the company’s compliance with the seven provisions of the Combined Code
specified for our review by the Listing Rules, and we report if it does not. We are not required to consider whether the board’s statements on

internal control cover all risks and controls, or 1 form an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s corporate governance procedures or its
risk and control procedures.

BASIS OF AUDIT OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board, An audit includes examination, on a test
basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial staterments. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates

and judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to
the company’s circumnstances, consistently applied and adeguately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order to provide
us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by

fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the
financial statements.

QPINION

In our opinion the financial statements give 2 true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and the group at 31 December 2000 and
of the profit and cash flows of the group for the year then ended and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985.

Pf\ (K N e vy
PRICEVAIERHOUSE( QOPERS

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London

27 February 2001
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Corporate governance statement

COMBINED CODE COMPLIANCE

The board is committed to compliance with the principles of the combined code on corporate governance which is appended to the Listing
Rules of the Financial Services Authority. The board considers that during 2000 the company complied fully with the provisions of section

I of the combined code, save in relation to provision B.1.7 {directors’ notice periods, referred to in the remuneration report on pages 6 to 12).
The company has complied with internal control provisions by establishing the procedures necessary to implement the guidance issued in
September 1999 (the Turnbull committee report) and by reporting in accordance with that guidance.

THE BOARD

The company’s articles of association require all directors who have been appointed since the last annual general meeting, and one third of the
remaining directors, to retire at each annual general meeting. The company complies with provision A.6.2. of the combined code, which requires
directors to retire and seek re-election at intervals of no more than three years.

The primary function of the board is to set the group’s strategy and to oversee the effective implementation of that strategy. To enable it to
carry out its responsibilities, detailed information on the group’s operations, including management accounts and reports from the chief executive
and divisional heads, is supplied to the board on a monthly basis.

Scheduled board meetings take place eight times a year, with additional meetings being convened if circumstances require. There is an
established agenda of items to be considered at board meetings, and the board also receives presentations from executive directors and other
senior executives on specific issues. The chairman meets with the chief executive on a weekly basis and other informal meetings and discussions
take place between directors as appropriate,

TFhe board comprises the chairman (part-time), chief executive, two other executive and five non-executive directors. The roles of chairman
and chief executive are separate. The hoard has nominated John Botts as the senior independent non-executive director. There are three
principal board committees, all of which have written terms of reference. Details of these committees are as follows:-

The audit committee is chaired by Geoffrey Unwin and its other members during the year were Sir James McKinnon, John Botts and Sir Ronald
Hampel. Following Sir James McKinnon’s retirement, he has been replaced on the audit committee by Adair Turner. The committee meets at
least three times a year, together with the finance director, head of internal audit and external auditors. Its primary purpose is to review the group’s
accounting procedures and financial control environment, as well s dealing with matters relating to the appointment of external auditors.

The committee also reviews annually the scope and results of the audit, as well as the fees of the auditors for both audit and non-audit services,
and makes recommendations to the board on these issues. It also reviews the independence and objectivity of the auditors. The committee is
authorised to seck information from any employee of the group and to obtain externat professional advice if it considers it necessary. Both internal
and external suditors have direct access to the committee,

The remunerafion committee is chaired by John Botts {who took over from Sir James McKinnen) and its other members are Sir Ronald Hampel,
Christopher Powell, Adair Turner, Geoffrey Unwin and Fields Wicker-Miurin. All members of the committee are independent non-executive
directors. Further details of the committee’s activities are set out in its report on pages 6 to 12. The company was among the first to invite its
shareholders to vote on its remuneration policy, and will do so again at this year’s annual general meeting,

The nominafion committee is chaired by Sir Ronald Hampel and its other members are Clive Hollick and John Botts. The committee meets

as required to review the structure, size and composition of the board and to identify candidates, both executive and non-executive, to fill board
vacancies as they arise.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The directors believe that effective corporate governance is strengthened by the presence of a strong independent element on the board.
Biographies of all the directors currently in office are set out on pages 20 to 21 of the Annual Review, and illustrate the range of experience
of directors. All non-executive directors are considered by the company to be independent for the purposes of the combined code.

RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The company mairtaing an ongoing dialogue with its major institutional shareholders by means of meetings and presentations as appropriate.
Consultation is undertaken with the ABI 2nd other bodies representing shareholders’ interest on matters which the company considers appropriate;
one example of this is the discussion that took place regarding the establishment and implementation of new incentive schemes during the year,
Shareholders are welcome at the annual general meeting where they have the opportunity to ask questons of all the directors, including the
chairman as well as the chairmen of the audit and remuneration committees. The company considers its annual and interim reports to be of
primary importance in keeping shareholders informed about the activities and progress of the group. Financial and other informaton about

the company is published on its website, which has links to the websites of other businesses in the group.
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Corporate governance statement

INTERNAL CONTROL

The board is responsible for the effectiveness of the group’s system of internal controls. Such systems can provide only reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material mis-statement or loss.

There is an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the key financial, operating and compliance risks faced by the group,
which has been in place during the year and continwes in force. This process accords with the Turnbull goidance issoed in September 1999.
The process aims to identify and evaluate risks which are specific to each of its businesses; it is undertaken at a divisional level and the resnlts
co-ordinated and reviewed by the audit committee. The board, through the audit committee, has reviewed the effectiveness of the group’s
system of internal controk.

Day to day management of the group's businesses is delegated to the chief executive and the executive directors within the financial and
strategic objectives for the group as approved by the board. The chief executives of the individual businesses are accountable for the conduer and
performance of their division within the agreed strategy and they are authorised to act in accordance with a system of delegated authorities which
is monitored by the internal audit deparument.

Individual businesses are responsible for complying with the group’s financial reporting mechanism which includes a comprehensive
budgeting and financial reporting mechanism, providing monthly trading results, balance sheets and cash flow statements recorded against
corresponding figures for the budget and the previous year, They are also responsible for compliznce with certain group policies and guidelines
set out in the group’s financial policies and procedures manual and the group policy manual.

Compliance with the foregoing is monitored by the internal audit department, which undertakes periodic reviews of individual businesses
to 2ssess their control status.
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities
for the financial statements

The directors are required by the Companies Act 1985 to prepare financial statements for each financial year that give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the company and the group as at the end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the group for that period.

The directors confirm that in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2000 the group has used appropriate
accounting policies, consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and esdmates, and that all applicable accounting
standards have been followed,

The directors are responsible for keeping proper acconnting records, for safeguarding the assets of the company and of the group and hence
for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
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Report of the Directors

The directors present their report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2000.

ACTIVITIES, BUSINESS REVIEW AND DEVELOPMENT

During 2000 the group’s principal activities were in the areas of business services, consumner media and online. The current activities of the
group are described in more detail on pages 10 to 16 of the Annual Review. The financial review on pages 17 to 19 contains derails of the
performance of the group and ivs divisions during the year.

On 28 July 2000 the company announced that, following the decision not to proceed with its merger with Carlton Communications ple,
itintended to dispose of its ITV broadcasting and preduction businesses to Granada Media ple. ‘This dispesal was completed on 19 December

2000. Other disposals during the year include the group’s stock photography business, VCG; its US advertising periodicals business, UAP, Inc.;
its European and part of its US exhibitions business, Miller Freeman; and Express Newspapers,

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR AND DIVIDENDS

The results for the year are set out in the group profit and loss account on page 20. After accounting for dividends totalling £112.1 million
(including the propesed dividend of £56.8 million), the balance to be transferred to reserves is £1,721.1 million. The directors recommend a final
dividend of 11.2p per share for the year ended 31 December 2000 to be paid on 15 May 2001 to those shareholders on the register on 9 March
2001. An interim dividend of 11p per share was paid on 27 October 2000, making a total for the year of 22.2p {1999: 22.2p).

DIRECTORS AND THEIR INTERESTS

Biographical details of directors in office as at 27 February 2001 are set out on pages 20 to 21 of the Annual Review. The following directors held
office during the year:

Sir Ronald Hampel, Clive Hollick, John Botts, Nigel Donaldson (resigned I8 April 2000}, Charles Gregson, Roger Laughton (retired
31 December 20009, Sir fames McKinnon (retired 31 December 2000), Christopher Powell, Charles Stern (resigned 26 February 2001), Tony
Tillin (resigned 18 April 2000), Adair Turner, Geoffrey Unwin and Fields Wicker-Miurin, Malcoli Wall, who has been appointed to the board
since the last annwal general meeting, will retive and stand for election at the forthcoming anmual general meetng. He has a service contract
which may be terminated by either party on 12 months notice. John Botts and Fields Wicker-Miurin will retire in accordance with the

company's articles of association at the annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer themseives for re-election. Neither of them has a
service contract.

The interests of the directors in office at 31 December 2000 in ¢he shares of the company and its subsidiary undertakings are set outin the
remuneration report on pages 6 to 12.

Neo director had 2 matertal interest in any contract other than a service contract with the company or any subsidiary at any time during the year.

CHANGES IM SHARE CAPITAL

During 2000 a total of 5,498,137 ordinary shares were issued in connection with the exercise of options under the company’s share opton
schemes.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

On 9 February 2001 the company announced its proposal to return to shareholders approximately £1.25 billion arising from the sale of its ITV
businesses to Granada Media by means of a capiral reorganisation and consolidadon. This is expected 1o be completed by the end of April 2001.
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Report of the Directors

EMPLOYEE INVOLVEMENT

The company recognises the talents, professionalism znd commitment of its employees and continues to place emphasis on their involvement
and development.

Over the past year the company has introduced a range of employment initiatives to attract, motivate and retain employees to the group.

The group is committed to the improvement of performance through raining and development of employees. While most training is provided
at local level, in 2001 the company has launched a group-wide management development programme which is designed to ereate 2 pool of high
potential managers within the group who network and share knowledge across businesses;

The company believes that it is important that all employees should achieve a good world/life balance, In 2000 a flexible working policy called
WorkChoice was introduced into the company and subsidiaries are being encouraged to roll this out into their operations. Other policies such as
a parental leave and sabbatical policy have been introduced.

In 2000 the company set up an Alumni programme to identify any steps that need to be taken in order to continue to attract and retain
employees and to develop ongoing dialogue with key talent after leaving the company so that ex-employees feel more comforrable about
returning to United at some future time.

The group is committed to a programme of action to make our equal opportunities policy fully effective. Selection of employees for
recruitinent Waining, development and promotions is determined solely on their aptisade, skills and ability that are relevant to the job and
in accordance with the laws in the country concerned, Consideration is given to making reasonable adjustment to premises or employment
arrangements if these substantially disadvantage a disabled employee or potential employee and efforts are made to provide appropriate
re-training should employees become disabled during their employment,

The company updates employees on corporate performance, business objectives and development through varicus formal and informal
channels of communications, including local intranet sites, in order to promote a better understanding of the group’s business. Each diviston is

responsible for deciding on the appropriate forum for and level of consultation with its staff, A European Works Council with a formally agreed
constitution meets 4§ appropriate to consult over transnational European issues.

Participation in the company’s savings related share options schemes continues to be strong.
p pany g P g

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The company recognises the increasing importance attached by its shareholders, employees and other stake holders to the role that businesses

have in promoting responsible environmental management, and seeks to ensure that all its subsidiaries pay due regard to these issues. The
company’s statement of enviropnmental policy can be seen on its website.

A review initiated in 1999 to identify relevant environmental impacts for the group’s businesses and to collect and report on environmental

data indicated that approximarely 90 per cent of our environmental impact in the UK is accounted for by energy consumption. We continue to
monitor our energy consumption and to seek ways of reducing this.

The radical restructuring of the group which took place during 2000 means that it has not been possible to produce relevant comparative data
for the year.

The company participates in the BiE Environmental Index of Engagement.

DONATIONS

In 2000 the group donated £329,000 to charitable organisations (1999: £564,000). The group made no political donations during 2000 (1999: nil).

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDENGS

As at 27 February 2001 the company had been notified of the following interests of 3 per cent or more in its issued ordinary share capital:

Number of ordinary shares held  Percentage of ordinary shares held

Schroders ple

53,988,877 10.64%
FMR Cora 18,590,492 3.66%
Prudenticl Group of Componies 16,723,964 3.30%
HSBC Investment Bank plc 16,550,891 3.26%
Putnam Invesiment Management 11C 16,054,319 3.16%
legal & General 15,536,612 3.07%
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Report of the Directors

CREDITOR PAYMENT POLICY

In view of the diversity of its business the group does not offer or operate a uniform timetable for payment of suppliers. Each operating company
is responsible for agreeing with is own suppliers the terms and conditions on which it will transact business with them, inclading payment terms.
The group’s policy is to pay suppliers in accordance with these agreed terms. The company has no trade creditors.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The next annual general meeting of the comnpany will be held on 2 May 2001, The notice of meeting and a description of the business to be
wransacted is contained in the accompanying document,

AUDITORS

The company’s anditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers, have indicated their willingness to continye in office and a resolution for their reappointment
and on their remuneration will be proposed at the annual general meeting.

By order of the board

Anne Siddell < %

Registered Office:
Secresqry Ludgate House
245 Blackfriars Road
27 February 200] London SE1 9UY
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Group profit and loss account
for the year ended 31 December 2000

Before

Exceptional Before Exceptional
excepfional items exceptional ilems
items {note 7) Total flems Incles 7) Total
2000 2000 2000 1900 1993 1999
£m £m £m £Em Em £m
Turnover ~ group ond share of joint ventures
Continuing operalions 1,087.3 - 1,087.3 3724 - 8724
Discantinued operalions 1,91 - 1,019.1 1,430.0 - 1,430.0
2,106.4 - 2,106.4 2,302.4 - 2,302.4
less: share of joint venlures’ lurnover {131.4) - {131.4) 1131.1) - {1311
Group turnover 1,975.0 - 1,975.0 2,171.3 - 2,171.3
Group operating profit
Continuing operations 9.2) (37.4) {46.6) 101 133.0) 122.9)
Discontinued cperations 750 {25.2} 498 59.5 (118 A7 7
Group operating profit 65.8 62.6) 12 69.6 {44.8) 248
Share of operating Hlosst/profit in joint vertures and associates
Conlinving cperations {30.2) - (30.2} Q7] - 9.7}
Discentinued operalions 11.6 - 11.6 14.5 15.2) Q.3
{18.6) - [18.6} 4.8 5.2) 1C.4)
Income from ather pariicipaling interests 49 - 49 27 - 27
Total operating {loss) / profit | 521 i (62.4) { 110.5} 771 1500 271 |
Profit on sale and closure of businesses [discontinued operations) - 21467 2,146.7 - - -
Profit on ordinary activities before interest 52. 2,084.1 2,7362 771 150.0) 271
Nel inleres! expense {43.0) - {43.0) [69.4} - {69.4)
Profit/{loss} on ordinary activities before tax .1 2,084.1 2,093.2 77 {50.0} 142.3)
Tax on profit on ordinary achivities 49.6) {201.5) {251.1) {60.5) 57 (54.8}
Profit/{loss) an ordinary activities after fax {40.5) 1,882.6 1,842.1 152.8) 144.3) ©7.1]
Equity minority interests 8.9 - 8.9} 18.3) - 8.3)
Protit/{loss) for the year 149.4) 1,882.6 1,833.2 161.1) (443} 1105 4)
Equily dividends (ma2.n {110.8)
Retained profit/(loss) for the year 1,721.1 1216.2]
Earnings/ {loss] per share
~ headline pre online businesses 49.5p 46.3p
- headline post online businesses 30.3p 40.8p
- belore amertisation of intangible assets and exceptional items 27 Ap 369
- basic 365.7p 121 2p
- diluted 348.9p {21.2lp
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Balance sheets
at 31 December 2000

Group

Group Company Company
2000 1999 2000 190G
Em Em £m £m
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 1,105.6 1,755.9 - -
Tangible assets 783 290.8 - -
Investments in subsidiary undertakings - - 3,804.4 2,488.3
Investments in joinl venlures:
— share of gross assets 422 120.2 - -
- share of gross liabilities |58.7} {113.9} - -
{16.5} 6.3 - -
Loans to joint veniures 33 391 - -
lvestments in jcint vanlues 17.3 454 - -
Investments in associaled undertakings 347 761 - -
Other invesiments 48.6 30.5 0.1 0.
1,234.5 2,198.7 3,804.5 2,488 A
Current assets
Stocks 17.1 138.9 - -
Debitors 279.8 436.2 26.3 101
Invesiments 34 4.5 - -
Short term liquid funds 1,066.0 - - -
Cash at bank and ia hand 1,115.2 47 9 - -
2,481.5 647.5 26.3 10.1
Creditors: amounis falling due wilhin one year (717.5) [802.3) {106.2) (107.1)
Net current assets/ {liabilities) 1,764.0 1154.8) (79.9) 197 .0y
Total assets less current liabifities 3,048.5 20439 37246 2.391.4
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than cne year
Bark and cther loans 413.0) {1,135.3) {413.0) {382.9)
Cther creditors {23.7) {16.8) (608.2) {1,086.5)
Converlible debt 177.5) 1176.9) (177.5) 1176.9)
[614.2) (1,329.0) (1,198.7) 11,646.4)
Provision for net liabilities of associated undertaking - 142.9] - -
Olher provisions for liabilities and charges (8.4} {10.8} - -
Total provisions for liabilifies and charges [8.4) 133.7) - -
MNet assels 2,4259 &61.2 2,5259 7450
Copital and reserves
Called up share capital 126.8 1254 126.8 125.4
Share premium account 292.5 2671 299.5 2671
Merger reserve 313 31.3 - -
Other reserves 125.0 560.5 83.3 103.0
Prafit and loss account 1,841.3 {341.5) 2,016.3 249 .5
Equity shareholders’ funds 2,423.9 642.8 2,525.9 745.0
Equity minority inleresls 2.0 18.4 - -
24259 661.2 2,5259 7450

These financial statements were approved by a duly appointed and authorised committee of the board of Directors on 27 February 2001 and were

signed on its behalf by:
Sir Ronald Hampel Director o

Clive Hollick Director

A
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Group cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 December 2000

2000 1999
£m £m
Net cash inflow from operafing uctivities 12.0 2713
Dividends received from joint ventures and associated undertakings 7.7 13.2
Returns on investments ond servicing of finance
Interest recetved 43.0 14.3
Interest paid 74.6) {48.6}
Dividends poid o minority shoreholders {5.4) 4.3
Income from parlicipaling inferests 4.9 2.7
Finance cosls incurred in raising debt - 15.1)
Net cash outflow from returms on investments and servicing of finance {32.1} 141 0}
Taxation
UK corporalion tax Ipaid}/ recsived [including ACT) (8.0} 16.5
Overseas lex paid {73.6} [36.0)
Taxation paid (81.6) {19.5)
Capital expenditure and financial investment
Purchase of fangible fixed assels {39.0) 1481}
Sale of langible fixed assels 76.5 38
Sale of investmenls 6.0 0.3
Purchase of investments {19.8) |17.4)
Loans lo joint ventures and associated undertakings {37.4) 28.0
Net cash cutflow from capital expenditure and financial investment (13,5 189.4)
Acquisifions and disposals
Purchase of subsidiary undertakings and businasses (8.0 {760.3)
Invesiments in joint venlures ond associated undertakings (80.7) i6.4
Sale of joint ventures and associaled underikings - 10
Sale of subsidiary undertakings and businesses 3,167.1 -
Exceplional costs incurred or sale of subsidiary undertakings 165.3) -
Net tash inflow/{outflow} from acquisitions and disposals 3,013 {7657}
Equity dividends paid to shareholders {111.4) {113.5)
Net cash inflow/{outflow] before use of liquid resources and financing 2,894.2 (744.6)
Monagement of liquid resources
Sale of current gsset invesiments - 1071
Purchase of current asset investments {1,066.2] -
Cash [put onl/1oken oft short ferm deposits {1,059.3) 272
Net cash {outflow]/inflow from management of liquid resources {2,125.5) 134.3
Financing
lssue of ordinary share capital 29.5 7.6
|Decrease)/increase in bank loons (785.1) 3230
Repaymenl of foan stock (3.2 -
Increase in olher loans - 247 .3
Copital element of finance lease rental payments - 1071
Net cash {outflow)/inflow from financing (758.8) 577.2
Increase/(decrease) in cash in the period 9.9 {33.1)
2000 1969
£m Em
Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net cash/{debt)
Increase/ {decreuse) in tosh in the period 9.9 133.1%
Cash ouflow/linflow} from decrease/lincrease] in debt and fease financing {including finance cosls) 788.3 |564.5)
Cash outlow /linflow) trom increase/|decreass) in liquid resources 2,125.5 1134 3)
Changes in net cash/{debl resulting fom cash flows 29237 7319
Movement in net cash/{debl] from sale and purchase of subsidiaries 1.2 -
Cther noncash movements 1.3 8.0
Translatien difference 65.9} 18.8
Movement in net cash/{debt] in period 2,857.7 {705.1)
Opening net debr {1,304.7} 599.6)
Clasing net cash/{debs 1,553.0 11,304 7]

Liquid resources inchudes term deposits and government and corporate securities,
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Statement of group total recognised gains and losses
for the year ended 31 December 2000

2000 1999

£m km

Profit/loss] for the financial year 1,833.2 1105.4)

Unrealised profit on the sale of assets to associated undertakings 4.0 -
Currency translation differences on toreign currency net invesiments:

Group 29.1 {13.3]

Joint venturas 0.2} 106

Associales 2.4} 6.5

26.5 7.7

Total gains and losses recognised since last annuat report 1,863.7 IREAN!

The historical cost result is not materally different from the reported profit/(loss) in either year,

Reconciliation of movements in group shareholders’ funds
for the year ended 31 December 2000

2000 1999

£m &m

QOnening shareholders’ funds 442.8 8591
Profit/ lloss) for the financial year 1,833.2 (105.4)
Equity dividends (112.1) (110.8)
2,363.9 542.9

Other recognised gains/llosses) relating to the year 30.5 7.7}
New share capital subscribed 29.5 7.6
Closing shareholders’ funds 2,423.9 642.8
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Group accounting policies

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, on a basis consistent with prior years and in accordance with
applicable Accounting Standards in the United Kingdom.

CONSOLIDATION

The group financial statements include the financial statements of the company and all its subsidiaries, made up to 31 December, or within one
week of that date, together with the group’s share of resalts of joint ventures and associates. The results of subsidiaries and joint ventures and
associates acquired or sold during the year are included from or to the effective date of acquisition or disposal.

TURMOVER

Turnover comprises sales, fees and amounts invoiced in respect of television production and broadcasting, completed exhibitions, publications,
market research, online acedvities and news distribution and is stated net of trade discounts, VAT and other sales related taxes,

GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Purchased goodwill is capitalised 2s an intangible asset and amortised on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life, being a period
generally between six and twenty years based on the nature of the business acquired. Where a business is sold, or where goodwill has been
impaired, the net book value of goodwill or the amount of impaired goodwill, as applicable, is charged through the profit and loss account as part
of the profit or loss on disposal or through operating profit in the year of impeirment. Other intangible assets comprise certain publishing rights

and titles, which are now fully amortised, and purchased Interner domain names and web-sites, which are amortised on a straight line basis over
their estimated lives of two years.

TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS AND DEPRECIATION

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost. Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets except freehold land. Depreciation rates are
calculated so that assets are written down to residual value in equal annual installments over their expected useful lives, which are as follows:

Freehold buildings and long leasehold property 1070 years

Short leasehold property Term of lease

General plant, machinery and equipment

5-20 years
Computer equipment 3 years
Motor vehicles 3~5 years
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Group accounting policies

INVESTMENTS

Listed and unlisted investments are stated at the lower of cost and market value or directors’ valuation, Investments in subsidiaries included in
the company's balance sheet are stated at cost or nominal value of shares issued where merger relief is taken, less any provision for impairment.
Invesunents in companies where the group both has a participating interest and exercises significant influence over the entity’s financial and
operating policies (through board representation and participation in financial and operating policy decisions) are included a3 associates under
the equity method of accounting, Similarly, investtients in companies where the group holds a long-tern interest that arises 2s 2 result of 2
contractual arrangement and is jointly controlled by the reporting entity and other venturers are included as joint ventures under the gross
equity method of accounting. The figures included in the financial statements are based on audited accounts, adjusted where necessary by
reference to management accounts for the period up to 31 December. Where the accounting policies of associates and/or joint ventures do
not conform in all material respects to those of the group, adjustments are made on ¢onsolidation.

STOCKS

Stocks and work in progress are valued on the first in first out basis at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises materials,
direct labour and a proportion of attributable production and other overheads.

DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax represents corporation tax, calculated on the liability basis, deferred by accelerated capital allowances and other timing differences,

1o the extent that the Habilites are regarded as likely to crystallise in the foreseeable fature. Full provision is made in respect of pension costs
accounted for in accordance with SSAP 24.

FOREIGN CURREMCIES

Assers and liabilides denominated in foreign currencies are wanslated into sterling at the rates of exchange ruling at the date of the balanee sheet
The trading results of foreign subsidiary undertakings are rranslated into sterling at the average rate for the year. Differences arising on the
retranslation of investments, inchading goodwil, in foreign subsidtary undertakings and related net foreign currency borrowings, and from the
translation of the results of those companies at average rate, are taken to reserves, and are reported in the statement of toral recognised gains and

losses. All other differences are taken to the profit and loss account,
PENSION COSTS
Pension costs are accounted for on the basis of charging the expected cost of providing pensions over the period during which the company

benefits from the employee’s service. The effects of variations from regular costs are spread over the expected average remaining service lives
of members of the relevant scheme,

OPERATING LEASES

Operating lease rentals are charged to the profit and loss account as they arise.
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Group accounting policies

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The group currently uses several types of financial instrument as pare of an overall risk management strategy. It does not enter into financial
insoruments for wading purposes. The accounting treatment adopted depends upon the risk that is being hedged. Interest rate risk associated
with net debt is managed centrally by using fixed rate borrowings and financial instruments such as interest rate swaps. Interest differentials
under interest rate swaps, forward rate agreements, caps and collars are recognised by adjustment of the underlying interest receivable or payable
over the term of the agreement and as such are accrued to the profit and loss account on a time apportioned basis. To mitigate the effect of
currency translation risks relating to foreign currency denominated net assets, the group uses foreign currency borrowings to provide an
economic hedge. Gains and losses arising on overseas net assets and the financial instruments used to hedge the associated currency risks are
taken to reserves #nd are reported in the statement of total recognised gains and losses {see Foreign currencies above). Currency net transaction
risks on monetary assets and lizbilities and forecast trading flows of the group are hedged in all material respects as they arise, generally using
forward foreign exchange contracts. Any gains or kosses arising on such arrangements are deferred and recognised in operating profit or as
adjustnents to carrying amount when the hedged transaction has itself been reflected in the group’s financial statements upon maturity of the
contract. The forward premium or discount for these contracts is not accounted for as interest but as part of the hedge achieved. If underlying
forecast flows do not materialise as envisaged, the hedges are either reversed or swapped forward to a future financing period. The adjusting
hedges are then accounted for through the profit and loss account to match the revised underlying exposure being hedged. Carrency opdons
may be purchased to hedge forecast trading flows. These are accounted for in the same manner as the forward foreign exchange contracts above

except that the premiam paid is deferred to the point of exercise or lapse of the apton, Further informadon on the accounting policy for
financial instruments can be found in note 23,

NEW VENTURES

The group has made strategic investments in certain joint ventures and associates which are viewed a5 being in the process of development.
The initial trading results of these new ventures are considered to represent a part of the group’s overall investment, and accordingly are exchuded

in the calculation of headline profit and headline earnings per share. The directors consider that this presentation is more meaningful in assessing
the performance of the group. Further details are provided in note 6.

ONLINE BUSINESSES

The group has made investments in Internet businesses which are viewed as being in the process of development. The initial trading lasses
of these online businesses, being identifiable online revenues less direct costs and an allocation of identifiable overheads and other costs,
including atributable interest, are considered to represent a partof the group’s overall investment, and accordingly are excluded in the

calculation of headline profit pre online businesses and headline earings per share pre online businesses. The directors consider that this
presentation is more meaningful in assessing the performance of the group.
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Notes to the financial statements

Group share of

Group share of

Group joint ventures Group joint ventyres
2000 2000 1950 1909
BUSINESS ANALYSIS £m £m £m £m
Turnover by division
Corinuing oparafions:
Professional medio 666.8 11.6 531.3 4.2
News distribution 1216 8.7 87.3 6.2
Market research 162.1 - 1520 -
Business lo business medic 950.5 20.2 770.6 10.4
Consumer media 62.0 54 63.4 0.9
Continuing operaficns before online businesses 1,012.5 25.7 8340 11.3
Online businesses 3%.6 9.5 243 2.8
Conlinuing operations 1,052.1 35.2 858.3 14.1
Discontinued gperations:
Professional media 158.6 18.2 296.3 16.4
Consumer medic 7579 78.0 1,010.7 100.6
Online businesses 6.4 - 6.0 -
Discontinued operations 922.9 96,2 13130 117.0
1,975.0 131.4 2,171.3 131.1
by geographic market
United Kingdem o21.1 92.9 1,127.9 104.3
North America 948.2 17.4 869.2 6.2
Europe and Middle East 594 18.0 1347 16.4
Pacific 46.6 3.1 395 4.2
1,975.0 131.4 2,171.3 131.1
Further details on disposals are given in note 30,
Turnover analysis is based on mrnover by origin. Turnover by destination would not be materially different.
2000 1999
£m m
Net operating assets by division
Professional media 813.6 1,191.7
News distribution 83.é6 641
Market research 59.6 53.0
Business lo business media 9568 1,308.8
Consumer media 63.5 616.5
Online businesses 128.8 122.2
1,149.1 2,047.5
by geogrophic market
United Kingdom 295.1 844.6
Norlh America 8231.9 10108
Europe and Middle East 17.6 156.3
Pacific 12.5 358
1,149 2,047 .5
Reconciliation of net operating assets to net assets
MNet operating assels 1,149.1 2,047.5
Investments 1,075.2 76.2
Corporation lax {225.2) (93.4}
MNet cosh/[borrowings) AB3.6 11,300 2)
Proposed dividend {56.8) 159.9)
Net assets 2,4259 661.2

As a result of the disposals during 2000 the segmental analysis has been amended, and comparative amounts have been restated, to reflect the
continuing business-to-business focus of United. The business services segment has been broken out into more detail, and now comprises the
offline business of professional media, news distribuion and market research. It has also been renamed business-to-business media. The offline
business within the former broadcasting and entertainment and consumer publishing segments are now disclosed within consurner media, All
online businesses are now shown separately in the online businesses segment. The impact of redefining the business segments previously reported

in 1999 is as follows:

Business to business media — a decrease of £23.6 million in group tarnover, an increase of £34.6 million in operating profit and a decrease of
£122.2 million in operating net assets.

Consumer media — a decrease of £6.7 million in group rurnover, an increase of £5.3 million in operating profit and £nil in operating net assefs.
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Notes to the financial statements

Group share Group
of joint share of Exceptional

Group ventures associales Subtatal items Total

2000 2000 2000 2000 2000 2000
BUSINESS ANALYSIS (confinued} £m £m £m £m £m £m
*Operating profit before amortisation of intangible ossets by division
Conlinuing operations:
Protessional media 126.8 - (1.4} 1254 (25.2) 100.2
News distribution 379 2.8 - 407 (4.7} 36.0
Market research 2.6 - - 22.6 - 22.6
Business to business media 187.3 28 {1.4] 188.7 (29.9) 158.8
Consumer media (excluding new venlures) 7.8 - 0.4 8.2 2.2) 4.0
Continuing operations belore online businesses 195.3 2.8 [1.0) 196.9 {32.1} 164.8
Online businasses (78.2} 9.1} (3.9 91.2) (5.3} [96.5)
Consumer media — new veniures - [3.8) 0.2 (3.4 - {3.4
Cenlinuing operations 116.9 9.9) 4.7 102.3 (37.4) 64.9
Discontinued operations (Note 1a} 121.4 10.5 4.5 136.4 125.2) 1112
*Operating profit before amortisation of intangible assets 238.3 0.6 (0.2} 238.7 62.6) 1761
Amortisation of intangible assets (167.6) {0.2) {18.8) {186.6) - (184.6}
*Operating profit/ (loss) by division
Confinuing operctions:
Professional media 23.8 - 1.4 22,4 (25.2) {2.8)
News distribution 338 2.7 - 36.5 (4.7} 3.8
Market research 19.7 - - 19.7 - 19.7
Business to business media 773 27 (1.4} 78.6 (29.9 4387
Consumer media [excluding new ventures} 6.9 - [0.7) 6.2 (2.2) 4.0
Conlfinving operations before onfine businesses 84.2 2.7 2.1) 84.8 {32.1) 527
Online businesses (88.5) 9.0 8.2) (105.7 {5.3) {111.0)
Consumer media — new ventures - [3.6) (10.0) {13.6) - [13.6)
Continving operalions 4.3) 9.9 (20.3) (34.5} (37.4) 71.9)
Disconlinued operations [Note 1a} 75.0 10.3 1.3 86.6 (25.2) 61.4
*Operating profit/{loss) 70.7 0.4 119.0} 52.1 {62.6} {10.5)
Non-operating exceptional items 2,146.7
Met interest expense 43.04
Profit on ordinary activifies before tax 2,093.2
by geographic market
United Kingdom 2.3 8.1} {17.8} 123.6) (34.9) {58.5)
Norlh America 593 2.2 (4.1} 57.4 (27.7) 29.7
Europe and Middle East {1.1} 6.0 - 49 - 49
Pacific 10.2 0.3 2.9 13.4 - 13.4
*Operating profit/{loss) 70.7 0.4 19.0) 521 162.8) 110.5)
Non-operating exceplional ilems 2,146.7
hNel inlerest expense {#3.0}
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 2,093.2

*Includes income from other participating interests

Further detzils on disposals are given in note 30,

In 2000, discontinued operatiens comprise United Advertsing Periodicals, Inc. certain television businesses and Express Newspapers (all part
of consumer media), Visnal Communications Group Ltd, Miller Freeman Europe and certain Miller Freeman businesses in the US (all part of
professional media). Non-operating exceptional items of £2,146.7 million comprise 2 profit of £591.6 million relating to professional media and
£1,555.1 million relating to consurner media. Operating exceptional items are described in note 7.
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Notes to the financial statements

Group share Group
of joint share of Exceptional

Group ventyres associgies Subtotal itlems Total

196% 1609 §999 1992 1969 1999
BUSINESS ANALYSIS [confinued) £m £m £m £m £m £m
*Operating profit before amortisation of intangible assets by division
Continuing operations:
Protessional media 103.9 1.4 0.9 104.4 28.0) 76.4
MNews distribution 24.0 2.1 - 261 {3.3) 22.8
Market research 105 - - 19.5 (1.3 18.2
Business to business media 147 .4 35 0.9 150.0 132.0) 117.4
Consumer media {excluding new venluras) 2.3 - 1.8 1.1 {0.4) 10.7
Continuing operations before online businesses 156.7 3.5 0.9 161.1 {33.00 128.1
Cnline businesses 7.8 3.9 - i21.5) - 21.5)
Consumer media — new veniures - 3.7 14.2) 7.9 - 7.9}
Continuing operalions 1301 14.1) {3.3) 131.7 (33.01 Q8.7
Discontinued operations {Note 1a) 1699 1.5 3.4 189.8 70 1728
*Operating profit before amortisation of intangible assets 309.0 7.4 51 321.5 150.0} 271.5
Amartisation of intangible assets 1236.7) 11.2) 16.5) 1244 4) - 1244.4)
*Operating profit by division
Conlinuing operations:
Professional media (3.0} 1.2 10.9) 12.7) 128.0) 130.7}
News dislribution 209 2.1 - 23.0 {23} 19.7
Market research 16.5 - - 16.5 11.3] 15.2
Business to business media 34.4 3.3 (0.9} 36.8 [32.4) 4.2
Consumer media {excluding new venlures) 8.6 - 0.7 2.3 0.4} 8.9
Conlinving operations before online businesses 43.0 33 0.2 46.1 [33.01 13.1
Online businesses 131.2) 14.9) - 136.1} - [36.1)
Consumer media — new ventures - (3.7} 142 17.9) - 7.9
Continuing operafions 11.8 15.3) 14.4) 2.1 [33.0} 130.9)
Disconlinued operations [Note 14l 605 11.5 3.0 750 (17.0) 580
*Operating profit 72.3 6.2 (1.4} 771 150.04 27 .1
MNon-operaling exceptional items -
Met inlerest expense 1694}
Loss on ordinary activities before tax {42.3
by geographic market
United Kingdom 21.4 13.0) 6.6 11.8 117.4)
North America 46.8 2.7 {0.9) 48.6 126.6)
Europe and Middle East 8.6 6.0 - 146 (0.8
Pocific 14.5) 0.5 6.1 21 15.2)
*Operating profit 723 &2 1.4 771 150.0)

Nonoperating exceptional items

Net intaresl expense

169.4)

Loss on ordinary activities before tax

42.3)

* Includes income from other participating interests.
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Group share

Grouvp share

of joint of Exceptional
Group venlures associates Sublotal items Total
2000 2000 2000 2000 2000 2000
BUSIMESS ANALYSIS {continued] £m fm £m £m £m £m
{a] Analysis of discontinued aperations
*Operating profit before amortisation of
intangible assets by division
Prolessional media 7.4 6.1 - 43.5 10.2) 43.3
Consumer media lexcluding new vemures) 104.6 4.4 9.0 118.0 {25.0) ?3.0
Online businesses {20.4) - - 120.4) - [20.6)
Consumer media — new ventures - - {4.5) {4.5) - (4.5)
Discontinued operations 121.4 10.5 4.5 136.4 (25.2) 111.2
Amortisation of intangible assets [46.4) (0.2} 3.2 [49.8) - 49.8}
*Operating profit by division
Professional media 259 60 - e 10.2) n7
Consumer media {excluding new venlures) 69.7 43 58 79.8 {25.0} 54.8
Online businesses {20.6} - - (20.8) - (20.6)
Consumer media — new venlures - - {4.5) {4.5) - 14.5)
Discontinued operations 750 10.3 1.3 3b.b | {25.2) 614
Group share Group
of joint share of Exceptional
Group ventures associates Subtotal items Total
199G 1999 1959 199% 199¢ 1999
£m £m £m £m £m £m
*Operating profit before amortisation of
intangible assets by division
Professional media 66.5 6.0 - 725 10.5) 72.0
Consumer media {excluding new venlures) 1072 55 15.2 1276 [16.5) 1114
Online businesses 13.8) - - 3.8} - 13.8}
Consumer media — new venlures - - 16.8) 16.8) - &.8])
Discontinued operations 169.9 1.5 8.4 189.8 {17.0} 1728
Amortisation of intangible assets {109.4) - 15.4) 1114.8) - 1114.8)
*Qperating profit by division
Professiona! media 362 6.0 - 422 10.5) 417
Consumer media (excluding new ventures) 28.1 5.5 0.8 43.4 116.5) 26.9
Online businesses (3.8) - - 13.8) - {3.8)
Consumer media — new venlures - - 16.8) 15.8} - 16.8)
Disconfinued operafions &0.5 11.5 30 750 11704 58.0

*Includes income from other participating interests.
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Restated
2000 1650
RECONCILIATION OF HEADLINE GROUP PROFIT BEFORE TAX TO PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX £m £m
Headline profit on ordinary activities before tox and onfine businesses 342.4 307.4
Net operaling loss afiributable to online businesses [111.8) 125.3)
Net inleres) expense aliributable o online businesses 116.5) 7.4
Headline profit on ordinary activilies before lox 2141 274.5
MNaw ventures
- Operating loss 7.9 {14.7)
— Interest expense {10.5) 7.7
Amarfisation of infangible assets
- Group {167.6) 236 7)
- Jeint venlures and associates [19.0) 7.7
Exceptional items charged to operating profit {62.6} 150.0}
Excepfional items credited to profit before tax 21467 -
Profit/(loss) before tux 2,093.2 142.3)

The operating losses of online businesses include atoibutable direct costs and overheads, Tnrerest has been allocated, at the average cost of net
debt, to online businesses to reflect the cost of funding these activities. As a result, the headline profit before losses of online businesses has been

restated for 1999.

Before Before Before
ional exceptional excepti al

items items items Exceptional
Continuing  Discontinued Total items Total
2000 2000 2000 2000 2000
OPERATING COSTS £m £m £m £m £m
Changes in stocks 1.1 - 1.1 - 1.1
Qlher operaling income 1.4 - 11.4 - 1.4
Raw materials and consumables {100.1} {142.4) {242.5) - {242.5)
Ciher extemnal choiges {499.7) 14797 1979.4) 161.4) 11,041.0)
Stalf costs [331.4} {161.2) {492.6) {1.0} (493.6)
918.7) {782.3) (1,702.0} [62.4) {1,764.6)
Depreciation ol tangible assels 21.4} (18.2) {39.4) - [39.4)
Amarlisalion of intangible assets — group (121.2) {46.4) {167.6) - (167.6)
Depreciction and emorlisation writlen off tangible and intengible lixed ossets {142.8) [64.6) 1207.2) - (207.2)
{1,061.3) (847.9) {1,909.2) {62.6} (1,971.8)
1999 1908 1990 1999 1999
£m £m £m £m £m
Changes in stocks (2.9) 0.1 13.0) - 13.0)
Cther operating income 37 4.3 10.0 - 10.0
Row materials and consumables [96.1) 12146.8) {312.9) - 1312.9)
Olher external charges 1371.7) 16556} (1,027.3) 238  (1,051.1)
Staff costs 234 1) {248.1) {482.2) 21.0} {503.2)
16991 11,116.3) {1,815 4) (44.8) {1,860.2)
Deprecialion of fangible assets 121.8) 127.8) 149 4) - 1495
Amorlisation of intangible assets — group 1127.3) [109.4) 1236.7] - {236.7)
Depreciction and amerlisalion wiilien ofl tangible and inlongible fixed assets {(149. 1 137.2 286.3) - 1286.3)
[848.2) 11,253.5) (2,101.7) 144 .8} {2,146.5)
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Before Before Before
exceplional  exceplionol  excepional
items items items  Exceptional
Conlinving  Discontinved Total items Total
2000 2000 2000 2000 2000
OPERATING COSTS {continued) £m £m £m £m £m
Included within other external charges:
Operaling lease charges
- hire of plant, machinery and vehicles {6.6) 1.9} {8.5} - (8.5}
- properly {33.4) 5.2} (38.8) - {38.8}
Audilors’ remunerafion — as auditors [0.5) (VA 10.8) - [0.8)
1999 1999 1999 1999 190G
£m Em £m £m £m
tncluded within other external charges:
Operating lease charges
- hire of planl, machinery and vehicles 7.8 0.2} 1804 - 18.0)
— property t19.3) 19.8) i29.6) - 129.6}
Awditors’ remuneration — as auditors 10.5) 10.5) 1.0 - (1.0}

Non-audit fees paid to PricewaterhouseCoopers in the year totalled £13.3 million (1999: £13.1 million), including £6.5 million charged as

exceptional items relating to the Group Process Review (1999: £7.4 million} and £3.1 million charged as costs against exceptional profits on disposal
of subsidiaries. Other non-audit services of £3.7 million (1999: £5.7 million) relate to taxation services and support to other corporate activity.
Professional firms are selected to provide advisory services on the basis of their relevant experience and expertise. For major projects, it is the
group’s policy to undertake 2 competitive tendering process. In certain circumstances, for example for reasons of confidentiality or knowledge
of the group’s businesses and souctures, it is appropriate to employ the group’s auditors to provide such services without 2 competitive tender

being undertaken,

2000 1909

INCOME FROM QTHER PARTICIPATING INTERESTS £m £m
Income from unlisted invesiments 4.9 27
2000 199G

SHARE OF OPERATING (LOSS)/PROFIT IN IOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (BEFORE EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS) £m £m
MNew venlures — confinuing {3.4) 7.9}
Other joint ventures and associales {11.2) 0.5
loint ventures and associates within discontinved operalions 15.0 19.¢
Amorlisalion of goodwi" [19.0) 7.7}
[18.6) 48
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MNEW VENTURES

The group’s share of the trading results (before exceptional items 2nd amotisadon of goodwill) and financing costs of new ventures, all of which
are within the consumer media division, comprises:

Operating

COperating
profit/ lioss} Interest Total loss Interest Tota!
2000 2000 2000 1999 1999 1999
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Channel 5 Television Group limited 0.2 (9.4) 9.2} 4.2} 17.2) 111.4)
SDN Limited ) 0.1) (0.5} {0.6) 13.7) 10.2) 13.9)
Onrequest Limited {3.5) - {3.5} - - -
ITV2 limited {disconfinued} (4.5) {0.6} (5.1} 6.8} 0.3} 7.1
7.9 {10.5) {18.4) (14.7) {7 .7 122.4)
LineOne, previously shown as a new venture, is now included within online businesses.
2000 199
EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS Lm £m
Charged to operaling profits:
Continuing operations:
Costs of acquisifion and integraficn of CMP Media, Inc. and ofthers [3.8) [23.4}
Group Process Review costs™ {11.5) 16.2)
Olher restructuring costs™ * (22.1) -
Year 2000 and Euro cosis - 13.4)
Cenlinving operalions {37.4) {33.0}
Discontinued operofions:
Cost of abandoned merger {19.6} -~
Group Process Review costs* (5.4} (8.4)
Other restructuring costs™ * 0.2) -
Year 2000 and Eure costs - 13.4)
Share of exceptional losses of ossociates - {5.2]
Disconlinued operations 125.2) 117.0)
Tolal charged to operating prolit [62.6) 150.00
Profits on scle and closure of businesses Note 30):
Sale of professional medie businesses 591.6 -
Sale of consumer media businesses 1,555.1 -
21467 -
Total credited/(charged) to profit/(loss) on ordinary activities before tax 2,084.1 150.0)
Tax on exceptiondl items.
Restructuring and integralion cosls - 3.6
Year 2000 and Euro cosls - 0Q
Share of exceplional losses of associares - Y2
Profits on sale and closure of businesses 201.5 -
201.5 57

* The Group Process Review is a project that aims to improve operating efficiencies. Further information is given in the Financial review on
pages 3 to 4.

** Other restructuring costs comprise the reorganisation and restructuring costs arising from the refocussing of United as a business-to-business

media group following the sale of certain television businesses, together with the costs incurred in preparing CMP Net for a potential public
offer, which has now been cancelled.
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2000 1999
NET INTEREST EXPENSE £m £m
Interest receivable 431 18.5
Inferest payable — on bark loans and everdrafis (25.2) {38.5)
- on other loans 147.1) 138.0}
Group {29.2) 158.0)
Joint ventures (2.8} 12.0)
Associales {11.0} 2.4
{43.0) 169.4)

Net interest expense may also be analysed as follows:
2000 1999
Lm £m
Group - excluding online businesses (14.4) 151.4}
- online businesses (14.8) 16.6)
(29.2) 158.0)
Joint venlures and associates  ~ excluding online businesses and new veniures {1.8) {2.7)
- online businesses . 11.0)
— new ventures (10.5) 7.7}
({13.8) 117.4)
43.0) (6G.4)
2000 1999
TAX ON PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES £m £m
UK corparation tax o 30.0% (1999 30.25%) 9.6 -
Overseas corporale tax 243.2 51.5
Tax relating to share of losses of joint ventures 1.5 57
Tax relaling to share of losses of associates 3.2} (2.4}
2511 548

p.34




Notes to the financial statements

10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR OF THE COMPANY
As permitted by Seetion 230 Companies Act 1985, the profit and loss account of the company is not presented. The consolidated profit for the
financial year includes a profit of £1,859.2 million (1999 profit of £206.4 million} which is dealt with in the financial statements of the company.
2000 1999
11. DIVIDENDS £m £m
Equity dividends
Ordinory shares:
Interim of 11 pence {1999: 11 pencel 55.3 54.7
Propased final of 11.2 pence (1999 11.2 pence} 56.8 56.1
121 110.8
2000 1999
Weighted Weighted
average 2000 average 199¢
2000 number Earnings 1999 number Earnings
Earnings of shares per share Earnings of shares per share
12, EARNINGS/{LOSS) PER SHARE £m million pence £m million pence
Headline before investment in online businesses 247.9 501.2 49.5 230.1 4069 46.3
Net losses aflribulable to online businesses [96.2) - (19.2) (27.2) - 15.5)
Headline after invesiment in online businesses 151.7 501.2 30.3 2029 496 9 40.8
Adjustrent in respect of new ventures (14.5) - (2.9} (19.5) - 13.9)
Earnings per share before amortisation of intangible assets
und exceptional items 137.2 501.2 27.4 183.4 496.9 369
Adjustment in respect of amortisation of intangible assets {186.6) - {37.2} [244.4) - 149.2)
Adiusiment in respeci of exceplional items
- charged 1o operaiing profits 62.8) - (12.5) 144 3) - 8.9
- profil on sale and closure of businesses 1,945.2 - 388.0 - - -
Basic earnings/(loss) per share 1,833.2 501.2 365.7 1105.3) AQS6Q 21.2)
Elfect of dilutive securities:
Chotions - 2.6 [1.8) - - -
Converlible debt 77 23.8 [15.0} - -
Diluted eornings/{loss) per share 1,840.9 527.6 348.9 {105.3) 4969 121.2)

Headline earnings per share before investment in online businesses is based on profits before investment in online businesses, new ventures,
amortisation of intngible assets and exceptional items. Headline earnings per share is based on profits before new ventures, amortisadon of

intangible assets and exceptonal items. The directors believe that these, along with earnings per share before amortisation of intangible assets
and exceptional items, are more meaningful measures of performance.

For diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of shares in issue is adjusted to assume conversion of all dilutive potential

ordinary shares. The group has three categories of dilutive potential ordinary shares: those share options granted ro employees where the

exercise price is less than the average market price of the company’s ordinary shares during the year, those shares which may be issued under

the LTIP and shares attributable to convertible debt.
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Other
Goodwill intangible assets Total
13. INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 Jonuary 2000 28167 63.5 2.880.2
Cusrency lranskation 1049 03 1052
Additions 10.1 1.8 11.9
Disposals {1,208.6) 150.8} {1,349 4)
A1 31 December 2000 1,633 148 1,647.9
Amortisction
AL T January 2000 1,062 4 619 11243
Currency Iranslation 290 G 291
Charge for the year 165.7 1.9 167.6
Disposals {728.7) (50.0) {778.7)
At 31 December 2000 528.4 13.9 542.3
Net book amount
At 31 December 2000 1,104.7 0.9 1,105.6
Al 31 December 1999 1,754.3 1.6 1,755.9
Plant,
Land and machinery
buildings ond vehicles Total
14. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS £m £m £m
Group
Cost
AS 1 January 2000 212.0 438.3 &50.3
Currency transiaiion 1.6 73 3.9
On disposal of subsidiary underiakings and businesses 71.4) 1322.1) 1363.5
Additiens 5.3 337 39.0
Disposals 184.4} {10.6) 195.0}
At 31 December 2000 63.1 146.6 209.7
Depreciation
At 1 Jonuary 2000 62.9 2066 3565
Currency translation 0.6 4.2 4.8
On disposa! of subsidiary undertakings and businesses 24.0) 1221.4) |245.4)
Cherge fer the year 6.0 336 396
Disposals 118.4) 18.7) 1271}
At 31 December 2000 27.1 104.3 131.4
Net book amount
At 31 December 2000 350 42.3 78.3
At 31 December 1999 1491 141.7 290.8
2000 1999
£m Em
land and buitdings al net bock amount comprise:
Freehold 18.3 103.7
Long leasehold 0.1 57
Short leasehald 174 307
36.0 149.1
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Loons to
Unlisted vnlisted Goodwill Tolal
15. FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS £m £m £m £m
Group
Joint ventures
Cost
Al'l Janvary 2000 3.1 321 12.3 54.5
Cunency fronslation 0.2 - - 0.2}
Additions 4.3 20.5 - 24.8
Transters in from subsidicry undertakings 9.3 - - 9.3
Dispeosals (27.8) 25.8) (0.6} 154.2)
Dividends received (4.0} - - i4.04
Share of profits less losses 13.7) - - 13.7)
At 31 December 2000 119.0} 33.8 1.7 26.5
Amortisation
Al 1 Janvary 2000 e Q.1
Disposals Q.11 0.1}
Charge tor the year 0.2 02
Af 31 December 2000 9.2 9.2
Net book emount
At 31 December 2000 {19.0} 33.8 2.5 17.3
Al 31 December 1999 3.1 391 3.2 45.4
Loans to
Overseas listed Unlisted unlisted Goodwil Tolal
tm £m £m £m Lm
Group
Associated undertakings
Cost
At T Jonuary 2000 349 2.0} 9.0 687 110.6
Currency translaficn 2.9} - - {0.3) 13.2)
Additions - 3.2 3.2 2¢.5 359
Transfer from provision for net liabililies of ossociated undertaking - 1129.1) 76.0 716 18.5
Transter to other lixed asset invesiments - 1.8} - 22.4) 124.2)
Dividends received - 3.7 - - 3.7
Disposals 133.7) 1.0 {12.2) {34.8) 169.7
Dividends paid to prelerence shareholders I1.5) - - - 11.5)
Share of profils less losses 3.2 1712 - - 8.0}
At 31 December 2000 - {133.4) 76.0 1123 54.7
Amortisation
AL 1 January 2000 34.5 34.5
Currency ranslation 18] {08}
Transler to other fixed asset investments 151 (151
Disposals (17.4} {17.4)
Charge for the year 18.8 i88
At 31 December 2000 20.0 20.0
Net book amount
At 31 December 2000 - [133.6) 76.0 923 34.7
Al 31 Dacember 1999 349 12.0} 9.0 34.2 76.1
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Loans to

Unlisted unlisted Goodwill Total
15. FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS (conlinued) £m £m £m £m
Provision for net liabilities of associoted undertoking
Cost
Al'T Januory 2000 (105.2} 62.3 - 142.9)
Additions {23.9) 13.7 71.6 61.4
Transler to associaled underlakings 129.1 {76.0) 171.6} |18.5)
At 31 December 2000 - - - -
A1 31 Decernber 1999 {105 2) 623 - {42.9)

Following the sale of the television businesses, the directors believe that United’s ability to influence SIS (Holdings) Ltd has reduced. As a result
United no lopger equity accounts for 815 (Holdings)} Ltd and the investment has been transferred to other fixed asset investments.

United's aggregate share of its associates’ turnover, fixed assets, current assets, liabilities due in less than one year and liabilities due after one
year is £98.9 million, £11.7 million, £76.6 mitlion, £(51.6) million and £(170.3) million respectively,

Class

Type of Country of of shores Shareholding Accownting
business incorporation held % Yeor end
Principal lixed asset invesimenls are as follows:
Joint venlures:
SDN Limited Multiplex operator  Great Britain Ordinary 333 31 December
PL Holdings LLC {Paperlocp) Internet business USA Ordinary 50.0 31 December
Springboard Infernet Services Limited [line One} Internet Service  Great Brilain -~ "C" Qrdinary 500 30 June
Provider
Associates:
Series D
Converfible
Creative Planel, Inc. Internet business USA Preference 21.8 31 December
Independent Tefevision News Limited Broodcasting  Greal Britain Crdinary 20.0 31 December
Channel 5 Television Group Limited Broadcasting  Greal Britain Oxdinary 35.37 31 December
The market value of listed associates at 31 December 2000 was £nil million (1999: £51.6 million). There are no listed joint ventures,
Listed Unlisted investment in
irrvestments investments own shoares Total
£m £m £m £m
Investments: other
Al'l January 2000 5.5 21.8 3.2 305
Addilions 0.3 10.7 13.8 248
Transler from associated undertakings - 9.1 - @1
Disposals &.5) i2.8) 13.8) 1131
Amounts released/{provided) 10 - 13.71 12.7)
At 31 December 2000 0.3 388 9.5 48.%

The market value of other listed investrnents at 31 December 2000 was £0.3 million (1999: £6.1 million). The group also holds investments in

own shares through the ESOP and QUEST. The market value of these shares at 31 December 2000 was £30.5 million (1999 £25.3 million) and
the nominatl value was £0.9 million (1999:£ 0.8million). ’

Employee Share Ownership Plan

An Emplayee Share Ownership Plan (the “United ESOP”) was established by the company on 24 June 1994, MAI already had an Employee
Share Ownership Plan established in 1989 (the “MAIESOP”). The United ESOP has purchased in the open market, or has received from the
MAJESQP, or has been granted options over, United shares which are held on wrust for employees participating in the plans listed below.
The purchase of shares in the open market is financed through bonuses sacrificed by senior executives under the terms of the SEEPP and
conmibutions in cash by the company to finence the acquisition of the matching element of such bonuses.

Dividends on the shares held by the United ESOP have not been waived. The costs of running these schemes have been included in the
profit and loss account,

Qualifying Employee Share Trust

In Janvary 1998 a Qualifying Employee Share Trust (“the QUEST”) was established for the purpose of satisfying exercises of opdons under the
MAI Sharesave Scheme and the United SAYE Share Optien Scheme. A new company, United QUEST T'rustee Limited, was incorporated for
the purposes of administering the QUEST, On 28 January 1998, the company issued 3,579,947 shares to the QUEST for a tota} consideration
of £25,732,629, equal 1o 719p per share, the mid-market price at the close of business on 28 January 1998,

On 17 March 2000, the company issued 500,185 shares to the QUEST for a total consideration of £4,321,600 equal to 869p per share, the
mid-market price at the close of business on 17 March 2000.

The dividends on the shares held by the QUEST have been waived.
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Oplions over

Ciplions aver Number of Number of
nited shares Unhed shores United shares United shares
15. FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS [continued) 2000 196Q 2000 1999
A1 3 December 2000 the holdings of the United ESOP and the QUEST were
as follows;
United ESOF 2,023,079 1,503,980 2,829,660 2,416,323
QUEST - - 754,636 1,095,979
2,028,079 1,503,980 3,584,296 3,212,302
The market value of United shares at 31 December 2000 was 850p (1999: 789p) per share.
The group has taken advantage of the exemption in UITF 17 (revised) and has not applied the abstract to its SAYE and equivalent
overseas schemes.
Number MNymber
of shares of sharas
aver which over which
options were options were
outstanding outstanding
2000 1999
As ot 31 December 2000 the aggregote liokilities of the United ESOP and the QUEST were os follows:
MAI 1989 Scheme 128,000 156,972
SEEPP — bonus options 1,192,511 1,551,008
SEEPP — matching oplions 880,818 1,141,433
Harlow Buller Share Bonus Plan 7,752 26,900
LTIp 1,498,523 562,156
Senior execulive allocations 60,544 76,333
Equily incentive plan - 123,830
MAI Sharesave Scheme 78,160 331,873
United SAYE Scheme 1,912,245 764,106
5,758,553 4 734,611
Shares Loans
in group fo group
compani compani Total
£m £m £m
Company
Investments: subsidiary undertakings
Cost
Al ¥ January 2000 1,702.5 785.8 2,488 3
Additions 1,302.4 13.7 1,316.1
At 31 December 2000 3,004.9 799.5 3,804.4
Additions in the year comprise additional investments by the company in existing subsidiaries.
Unlisted
investments Total
£m £m
Company
Investments: other
Cost
At 1 January 2000 and 31 December 2000 0.1 0.1
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2000 1959
16, 5TOCKS £m £m
Group
Raw materials and consumables — paper stocks 2.2 4.4
Work in progress:
~ short term market research confracts 12.6 10.6
~ programmes in produclion - 21.8
~ other 0.8 2.6
Finished goods and goods for resale:
~ tilm rights acquired - 70
- olher 1.5 2.5
17.1 1389
Group Croup Company Company
2000 1999 2000 1909
17. DEBTORS £m £m £m fm
Amounts falling due wilhin one year:
Trade debtors 182.4 2865 - -
Amounts owed by joint venturas - 4.4 - -
Ameunls owed by associales 22.8 13.4 - -
Other debtors 22.2 450 0.1 0.8
Prepayments and accrued income 46.2 798 1.1 0.8
Corporalien tax - - 247 8.1
Pension prepoyments 3.0 50 - -
Deferred tax note 24) - - 0.4 0.4
276.6 434.1 26,3 101
Amounts falling due after mere than one year 3.2 2.1 - -
279.8 436.2 26.3 101
Short term Short tarm
Investments liquid funds Totat lavestmants fiquid fuads Total
2000 2000 2000 199% 1999 1996
18. CURRENT ASSET INVESTMENTS £m £m £m £m £m £m
Group
Overseas
listed investments - 1,066.0 1,066.0 - - -
Unlisted invesimenls 34 - 34 45 - 4.5
34 1,066.0 1,069.4 4.5 - 4.5

The aggregate market value of current asset listed investments at 31 December 2000 was £1,067.2 million (1999: £nil).
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Group Group Company Company
2000 1999 pavv] 1999
19. CREDITORS: AMQUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR £m £m £m £m
Unsecured bank overdralis - 19.4 - -
Bank and other loans 411 455 31.2 345
Trade creditors 735 153.3 - -
Amounts cwed lo joint ventures - 127 - -
Other creditors 1260 1107 - 0.2
Corporalion lax 2252 G3.4 - -
Other taxes and social security 8.7 27.8 0.2 0.3
Accruals and delerred income 186.2 279.6 18.0 16.0

Proposed dividends:
- Group 56.8 56.1 56.8 56.1
~ Minority inlerests - 38 - -
717.5 802.3 106.2 1071
Group Group Company Company
2000 1999 2000 1999
20. BANK AND OTHER LOANS DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR £m Em £m £m
Bank loans - 7524 - -
Other loans 413.0 3829 413.0 3829
413.0 1,135.3 413.0 3829

See note 23.

Group Group Company Company
2000 199G 20060 1999
Z1. OTHER CREDITORS DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR £m £m £m £m
Amounts owed lo group componies - - 607.5 10857
Other cradilors 23.7 168 0.7 09
23.7 16.8 608.2 1,086.6
Group Group Company Company
2000 199G 2000 1999
22. CONVERTIBLE DEBT £m £m £m £m
&.125% subordinaled converlible bonds dve 2003 177.5 176.9 177.5 176.9

See note 23.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Objectives, policies and procedures

The group’s funding, liquidity and exposure 1¢ currency and interest rate risk is managed by the group’s treasury department. Treasury
operations are conducted within a framework of policies and guidelines authorised by the board and are subjecr to internal control procedures.
The objective of the framework is to provide flexibility whilst minimising risk and prohibiting speculative transactions or positions to be taken.

Through i1 central weasury funcdon the company borrows centraily on behalf of irs subsidiaries, with the aim of maximising fexibiliey and
price competitiveness. A variety of different funding sources ate used, including syndicated banl facilities and the public and private debt
rnarkets. Surplus funds are invested with the emphasis on preservation of capital, with limits for individual counter-parties being based on cradit
ratings and liquidity.

For the purposes of the disclosures which follow in this note (other than the currency risk disclosures), short term debtors and creditors
which arise directly from the group’s operations have been excluded, as permitted under FRS 13.

Interest rate management

The group is exposed t0 moveinents in interest rates. In order to minimise this exposure the net debt or cash position is managed centrally by
using fixed rate borrowings and financial instruments such as interest rate swaps, caps and forward rate agreements, The transactions must have

2 clear obiective and be approved by the board. The actaal mixvare of fixed to floating debt/cash will vary throughout the year although the
underlying principle is to limit exposure to interest rate movements.

Foreign exchange monagement

For currencies in which there is an active market, the group hedges, in all material respects, the transactional foreign exchange risk, generally
using forward exchange contracts. The gain or loss on the hedge is recognised at the same time as the underlying transaction. Foreign currency
borrowings are used, where appropriate, to provide an economic hedge against investments in overseas territories.

Interest rate risk profile of finandial liabilities

The interest rate risk profile of the group’s financial lishilites at 31 December was:

Fixed rate Fixed rate

Financial lichilities liabilities

Floating fixed  liabilities on Weighted

rate rate which no Weighted average peried

financial financial interest is average for which rate

Total linbilities hobilities poid | interest rate is fixed

2000 2000 2000 2000 2000 2000

Currency £m £m £m Em % Years

Sterling 2221 33.5 185.1 3.5 6.6 3.1

US dellar 426.6 - 413.0 13.6 7.2 55

Euro currencies - - - - - -

Other currencies -~ -~ - - - -

Total 648.7 33.5 598.1 17.1

Fixed rate

Firancial Fixed rate liabilities

Floating Fixed  liabilittes on liabilities Woeighted

rate rale which na Waighted average period

financial financial interes is overage for which rate

Total liabilities liahilities paid interast rate is fixed

1699 1909 1999 199 1999 1999

Currency £m £m £m £m % Years

Sterling 2348 384 184.5 119 6.7 4.1

US dollar o908 38.8 2581 29 &4 4.7

Euro currencies 1583 6.8 150.4 1.1 33 2.0

Other currencies o 0.1 - - - -
Total 1,393.0 84.1 1,293.0 159 J

p.42




23,

Notes to the financial statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS [continued)
Interest rate risk profile of financial liabilities {continued)

In 1999, the effect of the group’s interest rate swaps and caps was to classify as fixed rate in the above table £575.2 million of US dollar floating

rate borrowings and £150.5 million of euro currency floating rate borrowings. Following repayment in 2000 of the group’s US dollar and euro
floating rate debt, the swaps and caps were unwound or offsetting swaps put in place.

In January 1999 the coupon of 8.04 per cent on the US dollar private placement was swapped to a fixed rate of 7.255 per cent for the period
January 1999 to Seprember 2004.

Floating rate financial liabilities comprise borrowings which bear interest at rates based on the Libor less a margin for each relevant currency
for periods between one and six months, and (in 1999 only) bank overdrafts which incur interest at local prevailing rates.

‘The total financial lizbilities include £13.6 million of other creditors falling due after more than one year (1999: £12.9 million) and £3.5
million of vacant property provisions (1999: £3.0 million).

Sterling financial liabilities on which no interest is paid, as in 1999, have 2 maturity of between one and five years. US dollar financial
labilities on which no interest is paid, have a weighted average period until marurity of 1.8 years (1999: 1.6 years).

Interest rate risk profile of financial assets

‘The interest rate risk profile of the groups’ financial assets at 31 December was:

Cosh at Other
bark and fimanciol Floating Fixed  MNon interest
Total deposits assets rate rate bearing
2000 2000 2000 2000 2000 2000
Currency £m £m £m £m £m £m
Sterling 2,044.8 972.6 1,072.2 1147 1,906.9 23.2
US dollar 283.2 134.6 148.6 8.8 255.8 18.6
Euro currencies 73 6.8 0.5 6.8 - 0.5
Other currencies 1.2 1.2 - 1.2 - -
Total 2,336.5 1,115.2 1,221.3 131.5 2,162.7 42.3
As reslated As restated
Cash at Other As restated As restated As restated
As restated bonk and tinancial Floating Fixad Mon interest
Total deposits assals rate rate bearing
1899 190% 106Q 1999 1999 1999
Currency £m £m £m £m Lo L
Sterling 154.0 24.8 129.2 102.0 20.8 22.2
US dollar 457 1.6 14.1 Q.0 300 6.7
Furo currencies 88 8.3 05 8.3 - 0.5
Other currencies 3.2 3.2 - 32 - -
Total 2317 b7 .9 1438 122.5 598 294

Non-interest bearing financial assets comprise other fixed asset investments for which there is no maturity and debtors maturing in over one year
which have a weighted average period to maturity of 1.5 years (1999: 1.3 years).

For the year ended 31 December 1999 amounts have been restated to include other fixed asset investments of £27.3 million and debtors
greater than one year on a basis consistent with the year ended 3 December 2000.

The benchmark rate for loans to joint ventures and associates included in sterling floating rate financial assets is Libor, Other floating rate
financial assets principally comprise cash at bank earning interest at local prevailing rates for current accounts.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS [continued)

Fixed rate assets weighted
average interest rote

Fixed rote assets weighted average
peried for which rate is fixed

2000 2000
Currency % Months
Sterling 5.8 .7
LS dallar 6.5 0.6
At 3 December 1999 fixed rate assets had a weighted average rate of interest of 6.2 per cent and were fixed for a weighted average period
of 3 years.
Matvrity of financidl liabilifies
The maturity profile of the carrying amount of the group’s financial liabilities at 31 December was:
Other binancial
Debt liabilities Total
Maturity 2000 2000 2000
Group £m £m £m
Within one year, ¢r on demand 41.1 6.0 47.1
Between one and two years - 7.7 7.7
Between two and five years 426.4 3.4 429.8
Over five years 164.1 - 164.1
Total 631.6 17.1 648.7
Finance charges allocated to fulure periods
Unamortised issue costs 7.6 - 7.6
Other finaneial
Debt liabilities Tatal
Matyrity 1990 1999 1999
Group £m £m £m
Within one year, or on demand 54.9 - 64.9
Belween two ond five years 1,159.4 159 11753
Cver five yeors 152.8 - 152.8
Total 1,377.1 159 1,393.0
Finance charges allocated fo future periods
Unamorlised issue cosls 8.0 - 8.0
The maturity profile of the carrying amount of the company’s financial liabitities ar 31 December was:
Other financial
Debt fiabilities Total
Maturity 2000 2000 2000
Company Em £m £m
Wiithin one year, or on demand 313 - 313
Between one and two yeaors - - -
Between two and five years 426.4 - 426.4
Over tive years 164.1 - 164.1
Total 621.8 - 621.8
Finance charges allocaled 1o fulure periods
Unamorlised issue cosls 7.6 - 7.6
Other financiel
Debt liailities Total
Maturity 1909 1969 1902
Compony Em Tin Em
Within one year, or on demand 34.5 - 34.5
Between two and five years 407 .2 - 407 2
Over live years 152.8 - 152.8
Total 5945 - 594.5
Finance charges altocated 1o lulure periods
Unomaortised issue costs 8.0 - 8.0
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS [confinued)

Included in the above tables are the following:

Borrowing facilifies
At 31 December 2000 there were no borrowings under the £1 billion syndicated bank credir facility (1999: £752.3 million). The facility expires
in May 2002. All conditions precedent vo the commitred borrewing facilities were met at 31 December 2000 and the facility incurs commiment

fees of 0.0% per cent per annum {19%9: 0.0%% per annum). On 31 May 2000, a one year facility of $240 million was renewed. The group has

the option to extend this facility until 31 May 2002. There are no drawings under this facility at 31 December 2000, The facility incurs no
commitment fees,

Sterling convertible bond

Sterling fixed rate financial lisbilities include subordinated convertible bonds with a total par value of £180 millien due 2003. The fixed annual
coupon interest rate is 6.125 per cent payable semi-annually and the bonds are convertible into fully paid ordinary shares of 25 pence. Bondhelders
have the right to convert bonds in an authorised denomination into shares at any time up to the seventh calendar day before the date fixed for
redemption. The company may redeem the bonds at their principal amount:

a} in whole or in part at any time after 17 Decermnber 2001, in aggregate principal amount of £5 million or in an integral multiple thereof; or

b} in whole but not in part at any time if conversion rights shall have been exercised andfor purchases {(and cancellatons) shall have been effected
in respect of §5 per cent in principal of the bonds originally issued.

US dollar private placement
US dollar fixed rate financial lizbilities include 2 private placement of £83.7 million which is repayable in September 2004 (1999; £77.6 million).

US dollar senior unsecured loon notes

US dollar fixed rate financial liabilities include £329.3 million {1999: £310.0 million) of senior unsecured loan notes (stated net of issue costs).

The notes were issued in two tranches: £167.4 million 7.25 per cent notes due July 2004, and £167.4 million 7.75% notes due July 2009 (stated
at par value).

Fair values of finenciol assets and financial licbilities

‘The following tables provide a comparison by category of the carrying amounts and the fair values of the group’s financial assets and financial
lisbilities at 31 December 2000 and 31 December 1999. The fair value of US dollar private placements {included in long-term borrowings} was
caleulated by discounting expected future cash fiows at risk adjusted interest rates, Market value obtained from third parties has been used to
determine the fair value of interest rate swaps, forward foreign exchange contracts, the fixed rate convertible bonds and the US dollar senior
unsecured loan notes and other financial assets (excluding unlisted fixed asser investments). The fair value of cash at bank and deposits
approximates to their book value due to their short maturity, The fair value of unlisied fixed asset investments (incloded in other financial assets)
have been calculated on the basis of discontinued future cash flows, Listed investments are valued at market value, For all other financial assets

and labilities the carrying amount has been used as the fair value as it is estimated that the difference between the carrying amount and the fair
value is not material.

Book volue Fair value
2000 2000
£m £m
Primary Financial instruments held or issued 1o finance the group's operations:
Financial liabilities:
- Shorterm bosrowings a1, 4.1}
- long-term borrowings {590.5) (634.6)
- Other financial liabililies (17.1) {17.1}
Financial assets:
- Cash at bank and deposils 1,115.2 1,115.2
~ Orher financial ossets 1,221.3 1,226.6
Derivative financial instruments held to manage the inferest rate profile:
Interest rate swaps
- assels - 14.8
~ liabilities - {0.9}

Derivative financiol instruments held or issued to hedge the currency exposure on expecied future soles:
Forward loreign cutiency confracts

- assets

— liabilifies
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As restated As restated
Book value Fair volug
1699 1909
23, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS Iconlinued; £m £m
Primary financial instruments held or issued to finance the group's eperations :
Financial liabilities:
— Shortderm borrewings lup lo two years) 164.9) 64.9)
— long-term borrowings {over two years) {1,312.2) (1,340.6}
~ Other financial liabilities [15.9) 115.9}
Financial assets:
- Cosh ot bank and depesits 67.9 679
- Other financial assels 143.8 144.4
Derivative financial instrumenis held to manage the interest rate profile :
Interest rede swaps
- assels - 23.6
- liabilities - -
Derivative financial instruments held or issued to hedge the currency exposure on expected future sales :
Forward foreign currency conlracts
— assels - -
~ liabilities - {3.5)
Hedges

The group’s policy is to hedge interest rate risk using fixed rate borrowings and financial instruments such as interest rate swaps, Net foreign
transaction risks are hedged as they arise, generally using forward foreign exchange contracts, whilst foreign eurrency borrowings are used to
provide an economic hedge against investments in overseas territories. The group’s policy for accounting for hedges can be found in the “Group

accounting policies” section of this report.

The tables below show the extent to which the group has unrecognised gains and losses in respect of financial instruments used as hedges
at the beginning and end of the year. All the gains and losses on the hedging instruments are expected to be matched by losses and gains on the

hedged transactions or positions,

Unrecognised

Unrecagnised

Total net gains/

gains losses {lasses}

2000 2000 2000

£m £m £m

Unrecognised gains and losses an hedges at 1 January 2000 23.6 {3.5) 20.1

Avising in previous years included in 2000 income {10.1) 3.5 {6.6)
Guins and losses not included in 2000 income

Avising before 1 January 2000 13.5 - 13.5

Asising in 2000 1.3 o9 0.4

Gains and losses on hedges at 31 December 2000 14.8 {0.9) 13.9

ol which
Gains and losses expected 1o be included in 2001 income 4.7 0.4) 43
Gains and lesses expected 1o be included in 2002 income or later 101 iD.5) 2.6

Unrecognized
gains

Unrecognised
losses

Totol net gains/

{losses)
1950 1900 15990
£m £m £m
Unrecagnised gains and losses an hedges at 1 January 1999 Q.2 14.5) 14.31
Avising in previous years included in 1999 income - 2.3 2.3
Gains and losses not included in 1999 income
Arising belore 1 January 1999 0.2 12.2) 12.0)
Arising in 1990 23.4 t1.3) 221
Gains and losses on hedges at 31 December 1999 236 13.5) 20.1
of which
Gains and losses expected to be included in 2000 income 1.8 13.5) 1.7
Gains and losses expected o be included in 2001 income or later 21.8 - 21.8
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23, FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS [confinued)
Currency exposures
As outlined above in the “Objectives, policies and procedures” section of this note, the group policy is to hedge, where possible, in all material
Tespects exposures on monetary assets and liabilites.

The table below shows the extent to which group companies have monetary assets and liabilities in currencies other than their functional
currencies as at 31 December 2000, Ax 31 December 1999 no group companies had material balances in currencies other than their functional
currencies.

Net foreign currency monetary assets/{liabilities)
Sterling US Dollar Euro Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Functional currency of group operation
Sterling - 196.2 0.5 {0.2) 196.5
US Dollar {0.4) - - 35 3.1
Evro currencies - - - 1.6 1.6
Other currencies - (3.9 {1.0) - (4.9}
Total {0.4) 192.3 {0.5) 4.9 196.3
Former
financial
Property services Total
24.  OTHER PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES £m £m £m
Group
Al ¥ January 2000 4.9 5.9 10.8
Provided in the yzar 34 - 3.4
On disposat of subsidiary undenakings 1.3 3.1} 14.4)
Ulilised in the year 0.9 0.5) 1.4
At 31 December 2000 6.1 2.3 8.4

Liabilities arising from former financial services activities

One subsidiary of the group was formerly engaged in the selling of personal pensions prior to 1996. As a result of the indastry-wide review into
pension misselling by the Personal Investment Authority, the group is exposed to actuzl and potential futare claims by investors in respect of
policies found to have been missold. Although work is now progressing with respect to the identification and review of all pension policies sold,
the number and amount of such claims can not be finally determined until all potential compensation costs have been agreed. A second subsidiary
which also formerly engaged in the selling of persanal pensions prior to 1996 was sold during the year; no liability remains with the group. The
amount of the provisions at 31 Decernber 2000 has been determined on the basis of independent financial advice.

Licbilities on property

‘The group has lease obligations in respect of the continuing costs of vacant property, the quantfication of which depends upon the ability to exit
the leases early or sublet the properties, and for dilapidations on certain Jeasehold propertes which are dependent principally on actyal reinstatement
costs on expiry of the leases. The provision in respect of these obligations at 31 December 2000 has been determined following external
professional advice and will be utilised over the period of the leases in question, which range from 1 to § years,

Deferred tox

£m

Company

At 1 January 2000 and 31 December 2000 inote 17} (0.4}
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2000 2000 1999 1999
Provided Unprovided Provided Unpravided
24. OTHER PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES AND CHARGES |confinved) £m £m £m Em
The amount of provided and unprovided deferred tax ‘\Gbi"\]y/iGSSET] ts as follows:
Group
Accelerated cepia allowances - 3.9 - 2.6
Other timing differences - {84.1) - {108.3)
- (88.0) - 98.7)
Company
Other liming differences {0.4) 49.1) 10.4] 122.8)
The above tables do not include any tax on the distribution of retained profits and reserves by overseas subsidiaries or joint ventures or associated
undertakings as there is currently ne intention to remit such amounss to the UK.
2000 1999
25. CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL Em £m
Authorised
660,000,000 {1999: 680,000,000) ordinary shares of 25 pence each 165.0 165.0
2000 2000
Number £m
Allotted and fully paid
In issue ol 1 January 2000 501,472,875 125.4
Allotted in respect ol share option schemes 5,498,137 1.4
In issue at 31 Pecember 2000 506,971,012 126.8
Share
premium Merger Other Profit and
account reserve reserves  loss account Total
26. SHARE PREMIUM ACCOUNT AND RESERVES £m £m £m £m £m
Group
Al 1 Janyary 2000 2671 31.3 560.5 341.5 517.4
Retained prokit for the yeor - - - 1,721.1 17211
On disposal of subsidiary underlakings - - [435.5) 4355 -
Premium on shares issued, net of costs 32.4 - - 4.3 28.1
Unredlised profit on the sale of assets to associcled underakings - - - 4.0 4.0
Currency translation - - - 26.5 26.5
Ar 31 December 2000 299.5 n.3 125.0 1,841.2 2,297

‘The total group reserves at 31 December 2000 include £3.4 million (1999: £7.5 million) in respect of joint ventures and £(27.3) million (199%:
£2.7 million) in respect of associated underrakings, of which £(13.8) million (1999: £16.9 million} has been dealt with in the profit and loss
account and £{10.1) million (1999; £(6.7) million) of exchange has been dealt with in reserves, in line with SSAP 20.
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Share
premium Other Profit and
account reserves IDSS account Total
26.  SHARE PREMIUM ACCOUNT AND RESERVES |cominued) £m £m £m £m
Company
At 1 Janvary 2000 267.1 103.0 2495 619.6
Retained prefil for the year - - 1,747.1 1,747 .1
On disposal of subsidiary undertakings - 119.7) 197 -
Premium on shares issyed 32.4 - - 324
At 31 December 2000 299.5 83.3 2,016.3 2,399.1
Non—dislibulable 299.5 83.3 - 382.8
Distributcble - - 2,016.3 2,016.3
The company received £33 8 million (1999: £7.6 million) on the issue of shares in respect of the exercise of options awarded under various share
option plans, of which £29.5 million (1999: £7.6 million) is payable by employees to the group for the issue of these shares.
The net amount of foreign currency losses on foreign exchange borrowings less deposits offset in the reserves of the group and company was
£65.9 million (1999: gain of £17.9 million) and £nil million (1999: £nil) respectively.
27.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2000 the group is committed to make payments during the following year under non cancellable operating leases as follows:

Lond and Lland and
buildings buildings Other Olther
2000 1900 2000 1999
£m £m £m Em
Group

Qperating leases which expire
Within cne yeor 24 4.3 3.0 3.0
Two 1o five yeors 2.9 8.7 0.5 2.4
Aber five years 8.4 12.7 - -
13.7 257 35 54

At 31 December 2000 the company is committed to make payments during the following year under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

Land and land and
buildings buildings COrther Cither
2000 1999 2000 1999
£m £m £m £m
Company
Operating leases which expire
Aber five years 3.8 4.7 - -
38 47 - -

Capital expenditure contracted for but not provided in the financial statements amounts to £7.4 mitlion {1999: £3. million).
Under the demerger agreement between United and Garban ple, United granted call options to Garban to require United to subscribe for up
o £8 million of redeemable preference shares to be subscribed at any dme within 5 years of the demerger to meert certain uninsared liabilities of

Garban in relation to US lidgation.

As at 31 December 2000 the group has committed to subscribe for further loan stock in Channel 5 Television Group Limited, as necessary
to comply with bank facilities, up to a maximum of £23.2 million {1999: £23.2 million). Op 2 January 2001, United subscribed for £5.3 million of

addidonal loan stock.

The company acts as guarantor over a net overdraft facility of £70 millien and a foreign exchange line of £50 million that are available to subsidiary
undertakings. The company also acts as guarantor over the fixed interest payable on interest rate swaps taken out by a subsidiary undertaking.

The company has received a legal claim of £30 million in connection with ane of the disposals which took place during 2000. Having raken
external advice, the company views this claim as without merit and will resist it vigorousty. On this basis, no provision has been made for any

liability arising.
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Total

Conlinuing Discontinued Total

2000 2000 2000

28. RECONCIVATION OF OPERATING PROFIT TO CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Em £m Em
Opercting (loss)/profit 71.9} 61.4 (10.5)
Depreciation charges 214 18.2 39.6
Amorlisclion of infangible assels — group 121.2 46.4 167.6
Share of results of joint venlures 9.9 {10.3) [0.4)
Share of tesults of associates 20.3 (1.3) 19.0
Income from parhicipating interests 4.9 - (4.9}
Profit on sale of fixed assel invesimenis (2.4) - 2.4}
Profit on sale of tangible fived assets 6.1} 0. 6.2}
Payment against provisions {1.1} 0.3} {1.4)
Increase in stocks 10.5) {34.5} 35.0)
Increase in deblors {27.4) 127.2) [54.8)
increase/(decrease) in creditors 29.7 (27.3) 2.4
Other non-cash items including movements on provisions 10.2 {11.4) (1.2}
Cash inflow from operating activities 98.4 13.6 112.0
Continuing Discontinued Total

1999 (009 199

£m £m £m

Operating lloss)/profit [30.9) 58.0 271
Depreciation charges 21.8 27.8 496
Amortisation of infangible assels — group 127.3 109.4 236.7
Share of resulis of joint venlures 53 {11.5) 6.2
Share of resulls of ossociales 5.5 11 6.6
Income from participating interests (v.7) 11.0) (2.7}
Profit on sale of langible fixed assels 12.3) 10.6] 0.9
Payments against provisions 11.9] - 1.9
Decrease in stocks 7 7.2 14.3
lIncreasel/decrease in deblors 140.1) 23.0 (17. 1
Increase in credifors 259 &1 320
Payments against pre acquisition transaction related fiabilities of CMP Media, Inc. (57.4) - 157.4}
Profit on sale of current asset investments 4.5) - 4.5
Other noncash ifems including movements on provisions 18 6] 43 {4.3)
Cash inflow from operating activities 47.5 2238 271.3
At Acquisitions Disposals Other At

1 January Cash  lexcl. cash & lexcl. cash non-cash Exchange 31 December

2000 How overdrafts} & overdralts} movements movements 2000

29,  ANALYSIS OF NET DEBT £m Em tm £m £m £m £m
Cash at bank and in hand 679 1,115.2
Overdralls 11¢.4) -
485 1,152

less deposils ireated as liquid resources {35.8) 1,693.3)
12.7 2.9 - - 0.7} 21.9
Debt due alter one year 11,312.2) 7851 - - 11.3) [62.1} {590.5)
Debt due within one year 145.5) 3.2 12.2) 3.4 - - {41.1)
11,345.0 798.2 2.2 3.4 11.3) 162.8) 1609.7)

Deposits included in cash 358 1,059.3 - - - 11.81 1,093.3
Current assel investmenls 4.5 1,066.2 - - - 11.3) 1,069.4
Total {1,304.7) 2,923.7 (2.2} 34 (1.3 {65.9) 1,553.0
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30. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS AND BUSINESSES £m
Net assets disposed of during 20C0
- Intangible assels 5707
- Tangible fixed assels 1481
~ Joint ventures and associales 1063
- Slock 1571
- Debtors 2377
- Cash 4.0
- Creditors (283.3)
— Minority interesls 123.1}
917.5
Costs of disposals 106.9
Profits on disposals 2,146.7
Satisfied by cash 31713
£m
The aralysis of the et inflow of cash in respect of the sale of subsidiary underakings is as Iollows:
Cash consideration 3,171.1
Cash at bank of subsidiary sold 14.0]
Net cosh inflow fiom sole of subsidiary wdertakings 30673
The subsidiaries sold during the year contributed an inflow of £4.5 million (1999: £204.4 million) of the group’s net operating cash flows and
udlised £9.2 million (1999: £19.5 million} for capital expenditure.

Ar 1 January 2000 the acerual for the costs of the acquisition and integration of CMP Media, Inc. was £17.4 million. At 31 December 2000
this accrual was £4.6 million (having been reduced through utilisadon) and principally comprises payments due to former employees and owners
which are payable over a period of three years from acquisition.

31. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 2000 190G
The average number of persons employed in the group, including directors, during the year was as follows:
Category
United Kingdem 6,406 6,877
North America 6,079 7825
Europe and Middle Easl 659 809
Pacific s N
13,459 15,842
2000 199G
Em £m
Staff cosls, including directors” emoluments, were:
Wages and salories 425.8 421.4
Social securily costs 52.2 48.8
QOther pension cosfs 14.56 120
492.6 4822
2000 1999
£m £m
Directors” emoluments
Fees 0.4 0.2
Remuneralion and benefits in kind 1.5 1.8
Compensation for loss of office 0.5 -
Bonuses 1.3 0.6
Pension contributions 0.2 02
3.9 29

Details of executive and non-execurive directors’ emoluments and their interest in shares and options of the company are shown within the
report of the remuneration committee on pages 6 to 12 in the sections “Policy on remuneration of executive directors: pension entitlenent”,
“Table of individual directors’ remuneration”, “Directors’ interests” and “Directors’ interests in options over United shares”.
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PENSIONS
The group operates a number of pension schemes in the UK and overseas of both defined benefit type, with benefits accruing based on final salary

and length of service, and of defined centribudon type. The ten main schemes in operation at the start of the year are shown in the table below:

Both defined benefit and defined
Defined benefit schemes Defined contribution scheme contribution scheme

Anglia Television Group Pension Scheme United Money Purchase Scheme United Pension Plan

United Magazines Fincl Salary Pension Scheme ME| Dafined Contribution Plan
United Provincial Newspapers Scheme CMP Defined Contribulion Plan
HTV Pension Scheme

Express Newspapers 1988 Pension Fund
Miller Freeman Cash Balance Plan (LUS)

During the year, the group disposed of Anglia Television, HTV and Express Newspapers and therefore no longer operates the Anglia Television
Group Pension Scheme, the HTV Pension Scheme and Express Newspapers 1998 Pension Fund.

The pension cost relating to the UK and US defined benefit schemes is assessed in accordance with the advice of independent qualified
actuaries using the atrained age method and the projected unit method respectively. Assets were valued at market value, The latest actuarial

assessments for accounting purposes were carried out on 6 April 1999 for the United Provincial Newspapers Scheme and 6 April 1998 for all
other schemes, The principal actuarial assumptions for accounting purposes were as follows:

UK schemes US schemes
Financial assumptions % a year % a year
Investment return 6.00 675
Salary increases 4.75 600
Pre 5 April 1997 service pension increases Promised benefil, which can range from 0% to 3% n/a
Post 5 Aprit 1997 service pension increases 2.75 n/a
Retail Prices Inflation 3.00 n/a

A summary of the results of the latest actuarial valuations and pension costs for the defined benefit schemes is shown in the table below.

Pravision/ Provision/
Yariotion [prepayment] |prepaymieni]
from ot} Eliminated at 31
regular Bansion lanuary  Contributions pravision December
Regulor cost  Interest cost cost cost 2000 poid  on disposal 2000
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
UK plans 6.9 10.4]) 7.1} {0.6) 8.4} {11.9} 16.7 {10.2)
US plans 73 0.1 Q.1 7.3 1.5 [3.3) - 55
Total 14,0 (0.3 {7.0) 6.7 6.9} {15.2) 10.7 (4.7}

The assets of the schemes are held as separate trustee administered funds, The marker value of the combined assets of the six UK defined benefit
schemes at the latest valuation was £856.2 million corresponding to a funding level of 113 per cent. The market value of the US defined benefit
scheme at 1 January 1999 was $28 million corresponding vo a funding level of 83 per cenr.

The increase in regular cost of the US plan over that in 1999 was mainly as a result of an increased membership due to the participation in
the plan from 1 January 2000 of CMP Media, Inc, employees. During the year, the company disposed of certain businesses in the US; as a result
the regular cost of the US plan will reduce in the fitare.

The funding policy is to fund to at least local minimuim funding reguelations and to take a fuli or partial contributon holiday where surplus

allows. Surpluses and deficits are recognised on a systematic basis over the average remaining service lifetimes, using the level cash amount
method over 12 years.
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32.  PENSIONS {conlinued)

The pension cost for the defined contribution schemes for the year ended 31 December 2000 is as follows:

2000 1999
£m £m
Defined contribution schemes
- UK 11 4.5
-Us 4.0 2.5
Total for the year 5.1 70
33. RELATED PARTY TRAMSACTIONS
The group entered into the following transactions with joint ventures and associates during the year:
Bolonces Baloncas
[owed lowed
by}/dve to by]/due 1o
the group at Valve of the group ot Value of
31 December transactions 31 December transactions
2000 2000 1999 1999
Transactions with joint ventures and associales Nature of transactions £m £m £m £m
West Ferry Prinlers Limited Purchases - 25.9) 10.2) {25.8)
Operating lease income - &7 - 7.3
Newsprint Monagement and Sugply Services Limited Purchases - {58.7) 1.2} 165.7)
Channel 5 Television Group Limited Sales - 34 3.9 1.4
Loans and interest receivable 160.9 9.4 77.6 7.2
Springboard Intermet Services Limited {Line One) Lloans and interest receivable 26,0 1.7 154 0.6
SDN Limited Loans and interest receivable 9.4 0.5 4.9 0.3
Other joinl ventures and associates Purchases {0.3) {0.4) {3.3) (10.9)
Sales 2.0 1.1 13.5 10.5
Loans and inferest receivable - - 28.9 0.7

During the year the group also invoiced £0.3 million to former television subsidiaries for pension and other services, The balance outstanding at
31 December 2000 totalled £0.2 million.

During the vear ended 31 December 2000, payments of £nil (1999: £15,000 ) were made to Cap Gemini Ernst & Young in connection with the
development and implementation of new systems for the group. Geoffrey Unwin, a non-execusive director of United, is chief executive officer of

Cap Gemini Ernst & Young. Addidonally, payments of £36,250 (1999: £20,000) were made to Botts & Company Ltd. John Bortts, who is a non-
executive director of Unired, is chairman of Botts & Company Lid.

34, POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

On 9 February 2001 the company announced its proposal to retarn to sharehelders £1.25 billion arising from the sale of its TV businesses to
Granada Media by means of 2 capital reorganisation and consolidation. This s expected to be complered by the end of April 2001.
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SHARE OPTIONS

At 31 December 2000 opdons granted over the company’s ordinary shares of 25 pence under employee share option schemes were outstanding

as follows:

Number of Exercise Exercise dates Exercise dales
Date of grant shares price (p) From Te
United UK Executive Schemes
10/04/1992 12,420 354.1 10/04/1995 10/04/2002
13,/04/1993 126,964 5301 13/04/71996 V3/04/2003
27 /04/1994 32,616 6308 27/04/19%7 27 /04/2004
04/04/1905 10,182 505.5 04/04/1998 04/04/2005
19/04/1696 13,200 681.5 19/04/1999 19/04/2006
24/00/1996 30,100 692.5 24/09/1990Q 24/09/2006
26/03/1697 53,700 7545 26/03/2000 26/0372007
25/09/1907 36,523 7650 25/09 /2000 25/09/2007
14/12/19G8 316,980 511.0 14/12/2001 14/12/2008
167091999 9,880 6507.0 16/09/2002 16,/00/2000
03/03/2000 446,150 867.2 03/03/2003 03/03/2010
United International Executive Schemes
10/04/1092 5,140 3311 10/04/1995 10/04/2002
27/04/1994 58 764 607.8 27/04/1997 27 /04/2004
04/04/1095 16,000 4825 04/04/1998 04,/04/2005
19/04/1956 Q3,565 &658.5 19/04/1999 16/04/2006
05/06/1996 101,568 702.5 05/06/1999 05/06/2006
16/09/1996 312,268 4860 16/00/1999 16/09 /2006
24/09/1996 484,200 66G.5 24/09/19099 24/09/2006
26/03/1907 392,200 731.5 26/03/2000 26/03/2007
25/09/1997 191,477 7420 25709/2000 25/09/2007
14/312/1068 1,989,760 5110 1471272001 14/12/2008
16/09/1009 29,120 607 .0 16/09/2002 16/09/2009
03/03/2000 2,695018 867.2 03/03/2003 03/03/2010
09/05/2000 89,957 753.0 09/05/2003 09/05/2010
18/12/2000 3,356,100 8430 V7 /1272003 17/12/2000
18/12/2000 1,111,000 8430 17/12/2004 17/12/2010
MAI 1980 Executive Scheme
13/10/1094 28,800 351.2 13/10/1997 13/10/2004
18/10/1605 22,080 4676 18/10/1998 18/10/2005
MAI 1984 Executive Scheme
28/10/1991 96,000 192.2 28/10/1994 28/10/200%
MAJ 1989 Purchase Only Executive Scheme
20/10/1995 128,000 467 .6 20/10/1998 20/10/2002
MAI 1991 Executive Scheme
30/10/1992 102,400 234.4 30/10/1995 30/10/2002
20/04/1993 35,840 289.1 20/04/1996 20/04/2003
28/10/1993 105,600 3633 28/10/1996 28/10/2003
13/10/1904 151,680 374.2 13/10/1997 13/10/2004
18/10/1995 64,640 4906 18/10/1998 18/10/2005
Blenheim Executive Share Option Scheme
Q3/12/1992 751 6053 Q3/12/1995 03/12/2002

p.54




Notes to the financial statements

SHARE OPTIONS {conlinued)

Mumber of Exercise

Exercise dafes Exercise dates
Date of grant shares price {p} From To
United SAYE Schemes
10/11/1995 147,123 421.0 01,/02/2001 01,/08/2001
01/11/1996 226,544 532.6 01/02/2000 01/08/2004
31/10/19%7 324,977 6327 01/02/2001 01/08/2005
15/12/1098 654,380 514.8 01,/02/2002 01,/08/2006
17/09/1099 559,221 497.0 01/12/2002 01/06/2007
United International Sharesave Plan *
15/01/1998 118,512 7239 01 /022001 01 /0872003
04/01/1099 132,299 514.8* 01/02/2002 01,/08/2004
3070971999 131,955 497.0* QY /212002 01 /06/2005
MAI Sharesave Scheme
19/10/1993 2,668 2022 0171271908 01/06/2001
17/10/1994 22,506 3156 01/12/190¢ 01/06/2002
20/10/1995 52,986 400.0 01/12/2000 01/06/2003

*The option price is quoted in each country in the local currency, and has been translated at the exchange rate on the date of grant.

United United MAL MAI International
Executive SAYE Executive SAYE sharesave
schemes® schemes schemes schemes plan
The mavement in shares under oplion during the year was as follows:
Shares under option at 1 Janvary 2000 ©.454 166 3,011,910 Q36,736 331,873 1,049,271
Granted during the year 7,934 600 - - - -
Exercised during the year 14,748,063) 616,550 {201,6%96) 1225,614) 148,193
Expired, cancelled or lapsed [630,200) {483,115) - 128,099} {618,312}
Balance at 31 December 2000 12,010,503 1,912,245 735,040 78,160 382,766
*Inchiding the Blenheim scheme.




The directors consider that 1o give full particulars of all subsidiary undertakings would lead to a statement of excessive length. The following
information relates to those subsidiary undertakings whose results or financial position, in the opinion of the directors, principally affect the

figures of the group.

Principal group subsidiaries

Country of
incorperation
and operafion

Percentage interest
ond voling rights at
31 December 2000

Business to business media
Miller Freeman, Inc.

USA 100
CMP Media, Inc. Usa 100
CMP Europe lid Great Britain 100
United Business Media International Lid Great Britgin 100
Miller Freeman Asia lid Hong Keng 100
Miller Freeman PSN, Inc USA 100
Miller Freemaon BY MNelherlands 100
PR MNewswire Association, Inc. USA 100
PR Newswire Europe Lid Great Britain 100
Audits & Surveys Worldwide, Inc. Usa 100
MM Holdings, Inc. USA 100
Mediamark Research, Inc. usa 100
INOQP Research Group Lid Greal Britain 100
Online businesses
CMP Net, Inc. USA 100
E Business Media ltd Great Britain 100
Consumer media
United Adverlising Publications ple Great Britain 106
United Finance {ersey} lid Jersey 100

All companies stated as being incorporated in Great Britain are registered in England and Wales. None of the above subsidiaries are held directly

by the company.
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Website addresses

United Business Media plc
CMP Medio

CMP Media Europe

CME Inc.

Miller Freeman Asia
Paperloop

CMPret

ChannelVWWEB

CommWeb

EDTMN.com

Planetil

PR Newswire

PR Newswire Europe

NCP Research Group
Market Measures Inferactive
Mediamark Research Inc
Audils & Surveys Worldwide
Sirategic Markeling Corporation
Uniied Business Media International
Roplure

Channel 5

Exchange & Mart

www.unitedbusinessmedia.com
WWWACI'np,CGm

WWAW. CMpeUrope. com
WWW. CTSINC.COoMm

v mlasia.com

www. paperloop.com
www.cmp. nel.com
www.channelweb. com
www.commweb. com
www edin.com

waew wwaw. planefit.com
WWW.DIMEWSWITe.com
WA pmewswire,co‘uk
www.nop.co.uk

www . mimiresearch.com
weww. mediamark.com
WWW, SUTVEYS.COM
www . smcresearch, com
www. ubminternationat.com
www raplure.co.uk
www. channel 5.co.uk

wwrw, ixm. co.uk
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